ARUP

Health Infrastructure NSW

Blayney Multipurpose Service

Flood Risk Assessment

Reference: MPS-00-HYD-RPT-0001

02 | 27 September 2024



© NSW Health, 2024

This report takes into account the particular instructions and requirements of our client. It is not intended for and should not be relied upon by any third party and no responsibility is undertaken to any third party.

Job number 30409900

Arup Australia Pty Ltd | ABN 76 625 912 665

Arup Australia Pty Ltd 108 Wickham Street Fortitude Valley Brisbane

Fortitude Valley Brisbane QLD 4006 Australia arup.com



Document Verification

Project title	Blayney Multipurpose Service
Document title	Flood Risk Assessment
Job number	304099-00
Document ref	MPS-00-HYD-RPT-0001
File reference	

Revision	Date	Filename			
A	12/09/2024	Description	Draft Submission – for review		
			Prepared by	Checked by	Approved by
		Name	Toby Heading	Josh Atkinson	Josh Atkinson
		Signature			
01	27/09/2024	Filename			
		Description	Planning submi	ssion	
			Prepared by	Checked by	Approved by
		Name	Toby Heading	Josh Atkinson	Josh Atkinson
		Signature			
)2	27.09/2024	Filename			
		Description	Updated civil de	esign	
			Prepared by	Checked by	Approved by
		Name	Toby Heading	Josh Atkinson	Josh Atkinson
		Signature			

Issue Document Verification with Document \checkmark

ř

Contents

1.	Introduction	1
1.1	Purpose	1
1.2	Current Project Status	2
1.3	Assumptions and limitations	2
2.	Background Information	3
2.1	Blayney Flood Study (Jacobs, 2015)	3
2.2	Addendum-to-Blayney-flood-study (Storm Consulting, 2022)	5
2.3	The Estimation of Probable Maximum Precipitation in Australia: Generalised Short-Duration Method (Bureau of Meteorology, 2003)	6
2.4	LiDAR and Topographic data	7
2.5	Blayney Health Service Emergency Management Plan & Standing Operating Procedures (Western NSW Local Health District, 2021)	7
3.	Planning Requirements	9
3.1	Local Environment Plan 2012	9
3.2	Blayney Development Control Plan 2018	10
3.3	Guidelines for Engineering Works (WBC Strategic Alliance, 2009)	11
3.4	NSW Flood Risk Management Manual (Department of Planning and Environment, 2023)	12
3.5	Update on addressing flood risk in planning decisions (PS 24-001, NSW Government 2024)	12
3.6	NSW Health Infrastructure Requirements	13
3.7	Planning Approval Conditions	13
4.	Consultation	14
4.1	Blayney Sire Council	14
4.2	SES	14
5.	Flood Modelling	15
5.1	Hydrological Modelling	15
5.2	Hydraulic Modelling	17
5.3	Design Inputs	18
5.4	Hydraulic Modelling Results	20
5.5	Rate of Rise and Warning Times	28
5.6	Blockage	32
5.7	Flooding Summary	33
6.	Flood Emergency Response	35
6.1	Emergency response plan modifications	35
6.2	Flood Monitoring	36
6.3	Flood Response	36
6.4	Communications	37
6.5	Flood Plan Documentation	37
7.	Conclusions and Recommendations	39
7.1	Recommendations	39
Referen	ices	41

Tables

Table 2-1 Typical three-stage evacuation process	8
Table 3-1 Blayney CDP 2018 Stormwater requirements	10
Table 3-2Design Annual Exceedance Probabilities (WBC Strategic Alliance, 2009)	12
Table 5-1: PMP rainfall depth	16
Table 5-2: Design Temporal Distribution of Short Duration PMP (GSDM Calculation Method, BoM2003)	16
Table 5-3: XP-RAFTS Peak flows at the Mid-Western Highway, directly upstream of the project area	17
Table 5-4: TUFLOW Model Parameters	18
Table 5-5: Comparison in 1% AEP peak flood elevation to previous assessment	23
Table 9 Minimum floor levels	34

Figures

Figure 1-1: Blayney MPS Layout	1
Figure 2-1: 20% AEP Flood Depths and Levels (Jacobs, 2015)	3
Figure 2-2: 1% AEP Flood Depths and Levels (Jacobs, 2015)	4
Figure 2-3: PMF Flood Depths and Levels (Jacobs, 2015)	4
Figure 2-4 1% AEP Flood Depth (Storm Consulting, 2022)	5
Figure 2-5 1% AEP Provisional Flood Hazard (Storm Consulting, 2022).	6
Figure 2-6 Spatial application of the PMP, with the rainfall centred on the contributing catchment (BoM, 2003).	7
Figure 3-1 Land zoning as outlined in the LEP 2012	9
Figure 5-1: Design layout (NBRS, 24 August 2024)	19
Figure 5-2: Assumed overland flow path dimensions.	19
Figure 5-3 Civil grading plan developed by Taylor Consulting Engineers (27 September 2024).	20
Figure 5-4: Existing conditions 1% AEP peak flood behaviour.	21
Figure 5-5: General flood hazard vulnerability curve.	21
Figure 5-6: Existing conditions 1% AEP peak flood hazard.	22
Figure 5-7: Existing conditions PMF peak flood hazard.	23
Figure 5-8: Comparison to previous assessment.	24
Figure 5-9: Design conditions 1% AEP peak flood depth.	26
Figure 5-10: Design conditions PMF depth and velocity.	26
Figure 5-11: Design conditions PMF peak hydraulic hazard.	27
Figure 5-12: Design conditions 1% AEP peak flood impact.	28
Figure 5-13: Reporting locations – Design conditions PMF peak flood depth.	29
Figure 5-14: Rate of rise of PMF event within western courtyard.	29
Figure 5-15: Rate of rise of PMF event at southern boundary of Residential Aged Care facility.	30
Figure 5-16: Rate of rise of PMF event at emergency drop-off zone.	30
Figure 5-17: Rate of rise of PMF event at north-western boundary of Support and Mortuary unit.	31
Figure 5-18 Flow hydrograph at Oldham Place	31
Figure 5-19 Flow hydrograph at the Ambulance Station	32
Figure 5-20: Blockage sensitivity 1% AEP peak flood impact.	33

Figure 6-1 Provisional hydraulic hazard at the site.

Appendices

A-1
A-1
B-1
B-1
C-1
C-1
D-1
D-1
E-1
E-1

1. Introduction

This report has been prepared on behalf of Health Infrastructure NSW to identify the flood risk assessment for the Blayney Multipurpose Service (MPS) facility. The report documents the flood risk modelling undertaken for the proposed MPS development in Blayney, NSW. The proposed development shown in Figure 1-1 comprises:

- Residential aged care
- An Inpatient Unit
- An expanded HealthOne, treatment and inpatient areas
- Landscaped courtyards and gardens
- New parking facilities





1.1 Purpose

This report has been prepared to undertake a detailed and site-specific risk assessment for the proposed MPS development.

The scope of this assessment included the following:

- Review existing Blayney regional flood model for purpose of use in project.
- Update and refine hydrology model specific to Blayney township up to and including the Probable Maximum Precipitation (PMF) event.
- Update and refine hydraulic model latest available LiDAR survey.
- Hydraulic modelling for both existing and post-development scenarios.
- Review of the flood immunity for the proposed MPS development.
- Inform the emergency response requirements for the facility to manage flood and extreme storm events safety.

1.2 Current Project Status

The project has currently been approved by Heath Infrastructure NSW, with a design completed. A construction contractor has been engaged and is preparing to commence construction on site.

As part of the approval conditions, Health Infrastructure is obliged to undertake a Flood Risk Assessment, and to implement the recommendations of this study.

This study has been commissioned by Health Infrastructure NSW to meet the requirements of this Flood Risk Assessment. This study has included:

- A review of the existing flood assessments for the town of Blayney to document the flood risk at the site.
- Undertaking updated, site-specific modelling based on the accepted Council flood study.
- Assess the flood and overland flow risks to occupants of the Blayney MPS
- Identify the potential for off-site impacts.
- Identify measures that may be incorporated into the approved design to reduce or eliminate the risks to occupants and off-site residents.

1.3 Assumptions and limitations

The following flood risk report has considered the flooding and inundation associated with significant flow paths as documented in the Council flood studies (*Blayney Flood Study* and *Addendum-to-Blayney-flood-study*). As such, it has not considered site drainage as this is managed with the civil design developed by Taylor Consulting Engineers.

This study has considered the hydrologic and hydraulic factors with overland flows. Structural design, compliance with the National Construction Code, architecture and building details are considered separately by others.

2. Background Information

To support the development for a site-specific risk assessment, a range of data sources were considered. These are outlined in the following section.

2.1 Blayney Flood Study (Jacobs, 2015)

The objective of the Blayney Flood Study was to define the riverine flood behaviour of the Belubula River and Abattoir Creek as well as the overland flood behaviour in Blayney and their possible combined effects of the town area of Blayney. The study produced information on flood levels, velocities and flows for a full range of riverine and overland flood events under existing catchment conditions. These results supported the identification of possible management options within the Floodplain Risk Management Study and development of a draft Risk Management Plan for Council's consideration.

Peak flood depths and levels are for the site are shown in Figure 2-1, Figure 2-2, and Figure 2-3. These results indicate that the town of Blayney, including the Blayney MPS site, is subject to overland flows for a range of events, including floods as frequent as the 20% AEP flood. The provided results indicate that depths of up to 0.2 m could traverse the site in the 1% AEP storm event, and depths of up to 1 m could be present in a PMF.

However, this study is based on the ARR 1987 hydrology, and has been superseded by the Addendum-to-Blayney-flood-study.



Figure 2-1: 20% AEP Flood Depths and Levels (Jacobs, 2015)



Figure 2-2: 1% AEP Flood Depths and Levels (Jacobs, 2015)



Figure 2-3: PMF Flood Depths and Levels (Jacobs, 2015)

2.2 Addendum-to-Blayney-flood-study (Storm Consulting, 2022)

The addendum flood study is an extension of the original Blayney (Town) Flood Study (Jacobs, 2015). The hydrologic and hydraulic models prepared by Jacobs were updated to be in accordance with ARR19, and as such this study has been adopted as a basis for the modelling undertaken as part of this assessment.

Flood depths are outlined in Figure 2-4, while the provisional flood hazard (as defined in the NSW Floodplain Development Manual, DIPNR, 2005), is shown in Figure 2-5. These demonstrate that the Blayney MPS site is located outside the floodplain associated with the Belubula River. The provisional flood hazard is noted as being low throughout the town, with the exception of the Belubula River and the drainage swales (for example, the swale running along the Mid-Western Highway. This study also identified that this site was outside the extent of local catchment flooding.



Figure 2-4 1% AEP Flood Depth (Storm Consulting, 2022)



Figure 2-5 1% AEP Provisional Flood Hazard (Storm Consulting, 2022).

2.3 The Estimation of Probable Maximum Precipitation in Australia: Generalised Short-Duration Method (Bureau of Meteorology, 2003)

To assess the risks associated with extreme events such as the Probable Maximum Flood (PMF), the Bureau of Meteorology guide *The Estimation of Probable Maximum Precipitation in Australia: Generalised Short-Duration Method* (2003) was consulted. This guide outlines the procedure for apply a Probable Maximum Precipitation rainfall events, and generating PMF event.

Notably, there is a requirement that the rainfall be centred on the applicable catchment (refer Figure 2-6). In this case the PMF would be centred on the Mid Western Highway south-west of the site. The application of the PMP is outlined in Section 5.1.1.



Figure 2-6 Spatial application of the PMP, with the rainfall centred on the contributing catchment (BoM, 2003).

2.4 LiDAR and Topographic data

The Blayney Flood Study have been based on LiDAR captured by Land and Property Information (LPI) on 5 February 2009. However, a revised data set was available from Spatial Services NSW, captured on 11 April 2017. This data set provides greater resolution of key features such as the drainage swales. This data has a notional resolution of 1 m, and a horizonal spatial accuracy of ± -0.80 (@95% confidence interval), and vertical accuracy of ± -0.30 (@95% confidence interval).

2.5 Blayney Health Service Emergency Management Plan & Standing Operating Procedures (Western NSW Local Health District, 2021)

The Blayney Health Service Emergency Management Plan & Standing Operating Procedures (Western NSW Local Health District, 2021) outlines the procedures to response to a range of emergency events that may be encountered at the facility. The response to flooding is outlined in under the *Code Orange* procedures (referred to here as *the plan*). Typically, a three-stage evacuation procedure will be employed (Table 2-1), however in some emergencies it may be necessary to escalate directly to a Stage 3.

The plan has identified an alternative (safer) refuge location as being the Lee Hostel, Queen Street Blayney. Alternative medical facilities which may be used for evacuation include Canowindra (67 km away) and Cowra (68 km away).

 Table 2-1 Typical three-stage evacuation process

Stage One	Stage Two	Stage Three
Removal of people from Immediate Danger	Removal of people to another compartment or area	Complete evacuation of the building and/or site
Depending on the severity of the situation – evacuation may be into another room within the ward or the facility	Removal to another compartment protected by fire/smoke doors or a safer area Severity of the situation may warrant further evacuation – people should be moved to a safer area	Should the emergency necessitate complete evacuation of the building – all staff will be required to assist in the movement and care of the patients/ residents

3. Planning Requirements

3.1 Local Environment Plan 2012

The Local Environment Plan (LEP) documents the overarching planning requirements that apply to the site. Specifically relevant to the site are the land zoning provisions, and the food planning requirements.

3.1.1 Land Zoning

The LEP documents the land zoning that applies to this Local Government Are a (LGA). This is outlined in Figure 3-1. Based o his mapping, the land is zoned R1 (General Residential).



Figure 3-1 Land zoning as outlined in the LEP 2012

3.1.2 Flood Planning

Overarching floodplain management objectives are contained in the Blayney Local Environment Plan 2012:

5.21 Flood planning

- 1. The objectives of this clause are as follows
 - a. to minimise the flood risk to life and property associated with the use of land,
 - b. to allow development on land that is compatible with the flood function and behaviour on the land, taking into account projected changes as a result of climate change,
 - c. to avoid adverse or cumulative impacts on flood behaviour and the environment,
 - d. to enable the safe occupation and efficient evacuation of people in the event of a flood.
- 2. Development consent must not be granted to development on land the consent authority considers to be within the flood planning area unless the consent authority is satisfied the development
 - a. is compatible with the flood function and behaviour on the land, and
 - b. will not adversely affect flood behaviour in a way that results in detrimental increases in the potential flood affectation of other development or properties, and

- *c.* will not adversely affect the safe occupation and efficient evacuation of people or exceed the capacity of existing evacuation routes for the surrounding area in the event of a flood, and
- d. incorporates appropriate measures to manage risk to life in the event of a flood, and
- e. will not adversely affect the environment or cause avoidable erosion, siltation, destruction of riparian vegetation or a reduction in the stability of river banks or watercourses.
- 3. (3) In deciding whether to grant development consent on land to which this clause applies, the consent authority must consider the following matters
 - a. the impact of the development on projected changes to flood behaviour as a result of climate change,
 - b. the intended design and scale of buildings resulting from the development,
 - *c.* whether the development incorporates measures to minimise the risk to life and ensure the safe evacuation of people in the event of a flood,
 - *d. the potential to modify, relocate or remove buildings resulting from development if the surrounding area is impacted by flooding or coastal erosion.*
- 4. (4) A word or expression used in this clause has the same meaning as it has in the Considering Flooding in Land Use Planning Guideline unless it is otherwise defined in this clause.
- 5. (5) In this clause—

Considering Flooding in Land Use Planning Guideline means the Considering Flooding in Land Use Planning Guideline published on the Department's website on 14 July 2021.

flood planning area has the same meaning as it has in the Flood Risk Management Manual.

Flood Risk Management Manual means the Flood Risk Management Manual, ISBN 978-1-923076-17-4, published by the NSW Government in June 2023.

5.22 Special flood considerations

[Not adopted]

3.2 Blayney Development Control Plan 2018

The Blayney Development Control Plan 2018 includes a section on Environmental Hazards which addresses both stormwater and flooding.

3.2.1 Stormwater

The Blayney DCP outlined a number of objectives and prescriptive requirements with respect to stormwater. The prescriptive requirements are applied based on the land zoning outlined in the LEP. These cover stormwater conveyance, water quality and soil and water management.

For R1 (General Residential), the prescriptive requirements are applicable stormwater management and overland flow management on this site are outlined in Table 3-1.

Table 3-1 Blayney CDP 2018 Stormwater requirements

Clause	Requirement	Where addressed
1	If a Soil and Water Management Plan is required by Council's Development and Building Guide then it must demonstrate / address the matters set out below (where relevant).	To be addressed in the construction phase.
2	For all areas (both urban and rural) development must ensure stormwater management:	Overland flows are discussed in Section 5.4 below.
	a) Is in accordance with Council's Guidelines for Engineering Works (as amended);	Water quality has been assessed separately.

Clause	Requirement	Where addressed
	b) Does not result in any concentration of flows to adjoining properties;	
	c) Is designed to optimise the interception, retention and removal of water-borne pollutants and sediment prior to their discharge to receiving waters.	
3	 For urban areas (Zone R1, RU5, B2, B5, B6, IN1 & IN2 and Zone R5 Large Lot Residential attached to towns/villages where lots < 1 ha in area) development must ensure stormwater management: a) Is designed to flow to Council's stormwater system, inter-allotment drainage easement, or other legal point of discharge; b) Where there is likely to be significant site coverage by buildings and hardstand areas, that the post-development run-off from the development site: i) will not exceed the run-off from the site during its pre-developed state; ii) Does not significantly alter pre-development stormwater patterns and flow regimes or cause unacceptable environmental damage in existing watercourses or receiving waters; c) For development of larger sites where the downstream hydraulic capacity of one or more components in a drainage system is inadequate for the design flow and/or where economically feasible, Council may require the design to incorporate some or all of the following: i) Onsite stormwater retention and/or detention devices; ii) Water quality treatment devices; and or 	The land is zoned R1 (General Residential, and as such these provisions can be expected to apply. Overland flows are documented in Section 5.4 below.
	iii) Water re-use, to manage stormwater on the site and improve water quality outcomes when discharging to the natural environment in accordance with recognised Water Sensitive Urban Design principles.	

3.2.2 Flooding

However, the controls relating to flooding are to be added at a later date. As such, the applicable controls will default back to the principals outline in the LEP, and the guidance provide in the NSW Flood Risk Management Manual (Department of Planning and Environment, 2023).

3.3 Guidelines for Engineering Works (WBC Strategic Alliance, 2009)

Details around the stormwater management requirements for the LGA are documented in the Guidelines for Engineering Works (WBC Strategic Alliance, 2009), and included specific requirements for both flooding and stormwater.

With respect to flooding, the general design requirement is to be based around the 1% Annual Exceedance Probability (AEP) flood event.

Stormwater drainage systems are to use the major/minor approach. In this approach, underground pipes and associated pits are to be used to drain nascence (frequent) flows, while overland flow paths are to be used to convey the rarer events in a safe and efficient manner. Major system drainage designs shall aim to control flood flows so that the severity of flooding downstream, and upstream afflux, is not increased.

Design flows for the stormwater and overland flow management system are outlined in Table 3-2. For this site, the 20% AEP event is most relevant to the stormwater design.

Table 3-2Design Annual Exceedance Probabilities (WBC Strategic Alliance, 2009)

Land Use	Annual Exceedance Probability (AEP)
Road Drainage - Minor (Piped) System	
Arterial Roads (Cross Drainage)	2%
Rural & Rural Residential (Cross Drainage)	20%
Urban Residential	20%
Sag Point (must have a defined 1% AEP overflow route)	20%
Commercial	20%
Floodway 'low-flow' system	100%
Interallotment Drainage	20%
Trunk Drainage	1%

3.4 NSW Flood Risk Management Manual (Department of Planning and Environment, 2023)

The policy as outlined in this document sets the direction for floodplain risk management in New South Wales. This manual and its associated toolkit support the implementation of the policy through the combined efforts of all levels of government.

As outlined in the guide, the primary objective of this policy is to reduce the impacts of flooding on communities and individual owners and occupiers of flood prone property, and reduce private and public losses resulting from floods. Achieving these outcomes includes:

- using a merit-based approach in preparing and implementing flood risk management (FRM) plans to address riverine and local overland flooding
- reducing the impact of flooding and flood liability on existing developed areas identified in FRM plans through flood mitigation works and measures including ongoing emergency management (EM) measures, the raising of houses where appropriate and by development controls
- adopting a merit-based approach for all development decisions in the floodplain, taking into account social, economic and ecological factors, as well as flooding considerations
- *limiting the potential for flood losses in all areas proposed for development or redevelopment by the application of ecologically sensitive planning and development controls.*

It is noted that this policy recognises that flood prone land is a valuable resource, and that the development of flood prone land should be the subject of careful assessment which incorporates consideration of local circumstances. However, this manual does not outline the requirements for the development of flood prone land as these requirements are provided by the relevant planning legislation and policies (such as the LEP – refer Section 3.1).

3.5 Update on addressing flood risk in planning decisions (PS 24-001, NSW Government 2024)

This circular provides advice on a package of changes regarding how land use planning considers flooding and flood-related constraints. It is intended to provide specific direction on incorporating the flood planning policy as outlined in the NSW Flood Risk Management Manual (Department of Planning and Environment, 2023). This circular advises that councils and other authorities apply a risk-based approach to the assessment of flood-affected proposals. This risk-based approach should take into account the flood risk profile of each proposal which considers the flood characteristics for the location, including:

- whether the proposal is in a high-risk catchment
- the location of the proposal in relation to flood behaviour and constraints including:
 - floodway, flood storage area or flood fringe area
 - the hazard vulnerability classification of the land
 - *frequency of inundation*
- whether the proposal provides for safe occupation and efficient and effective evacuation in flood events and how it is to be achieved
- *in high-risk catchments, whether the proposal is likely to result in a significant increase to the risk to life in other parts of the catchment in a PMF flood event*
- any known evacuation constraints such as the flood emergency response classification for the area and available warning times (including rate of rise and when the evacuation route is cut off by floodwater)
- whether the proposal is for a sensitive or hazardous land use, or other higher risk uses and what mitigation strategies (if any) are proposed to reduce any identified risks
- whether there may be adverse flooding impacts on surrounding properties
- potential impacts of cut and fill and other building works on flood behaviour
- ability of proposed development to withstand flood impacts.

3.6 NSW Health Infrastructure Requirements

NSW Health Infrastructure, as part of a statutory body, have building requirements separate to those outlined for the LGA. These guidelines are developed to be consistent with the broader NSW Flood Prone Land Policy, including PS 24-001). These requirements indicate that for this proposal, immunity from the 1% AEP flood is required.

3.7 Planning Approval Conditions

The conditions of approval with respect to flooding that apply to this development are outlined in Condition 20 of the REF Decision Statement). The are:

• It shall include assessment of any off-site impacts of development, including potential impacts on the neighbouring Lee Roshana Aged Care Facility.

(iii) structural capacity of proposed buildings to withstand floodwater loads and currents; and

(iv) potential for environmental pollution from the development in association with flooding.

- Identify any specific detailed design solutions and operational measures to mitigate flood risk where required, including:
 - minimum floor levels for essential plant, clinical facilities and utility connection points;
 - appropriate building construction standards including the use of flood compatible building components and the maintenance of structural integrity both during and after a PMF flood event;
- consideration of appropriate flood response actions for site attendees during flood events (including vulnerable persons) such as shelter-in-place or evacuation, consideration of potential impacts of site isolation including loss of power, consideration of any evacuation issues during the full range of anticipated flood events, and a decision matrix regarding site evacuation triggers, routes and destinations, as appropriate.

4. Consultation

During the design development of the facility, Health Infrastructure NSW consulted with a number of external Agencies and stakeholders, including Blayney Shire Council and the SES.

4.1 Blayney Sire Council

Consultation was undertaken with Blayney Sire Council regarding a range of issues, including flooding and stormwater. Council noted that the stormwater management provisions were an improvement over the existing arrangements, and that their current flood study did not indicate the site as being flooded.

4.2 SES

Consultation was undertaken with the NSW State Emergency Service (SES), with a response letter provided on 25 March 2024. The letter outlined their position in response to the proposed development, including:

- Advocate for land use planning in which aged care facilities are situated above the Probable Maximum Flood (PMF) level and are not subject to isolation.
- Note a design condition has been proposed which involves construction of a flood levee/wall to prevent inundation of the site in the PMF. However, in the PMF event, the levee is subject to high hazard floodwaters and associated debris loads. If failure of the levee occurs, this may result in loss of life and/or widespread damage to property.
- Note the site is subject to vehicular isolation from the 20% AEP event.
- Recommend obtaining further information regarding the impact of the proposed design condition on adjacent flood risk in all flood events up to and including the PMF.

The submissions outlined above have been considered as part of this assessment.

5. Flood Modelling

Hydrological and hydraulic models for Blayney Town were developed as part of the Blayney Flood Study (Jacobs, 2015), and updated to current Australian Rainfall and Runoff (ARR) standards in 2022 by Storm Consulting as reported in the Blayney Flood Study Addendum (Storm Consulting, 2022).

Site specific flood modelling has been undertaken in order to determine post-development flood levels on site for a range of flood events and to determine any flood impact in adjacent property as a result of the proposed development. This flood modelling is more detailed and centred on this site so as to provide a complete overview of the flood risk at this site for events up to and including the PMF. It considers overland flows and local stormwater. However, the site is sufficiently elevated above the Belubula River flood plain so as not require consideration of mainstream flooding (other than as a tailwater contribution to the local flood model).

The existing hydrology model (XP-RAFTS) and hydraulic model (TUFLOW) have been refined for use in this assessment as discussed in the following sections.

5.1 Hydrological Modelling

Hydrological modelling was undertaken based on ARR (Australian Rainfall and Runoff) 2019 guidelines using the XP-RAFTS model developed for the Blayney Flood Study (Jacobs, 2015) and updated for the Blayney Flood Study Addendum (Storm Consulting, 2022).

The XP-RAFTS model was adopted for use as is, the major update being inclusion of the 1% AEP + Climate Change and PMP event.

It is noted that an inflow is applied to the XP-RAFTS model at GS 412104, located on the Belubula River upstream of Blayney. The external inflow was sourced from a calibrated and validated RORB model developed as part of the Portfolio Risk Assessment for 24 Dams (Jacobs, 2001). The RORB model was not supplied for use in this project and therefore could not be utilised in the updated calculation of the PMP flows.

5.1.1 PMP Calculation

Completed according to the Estimation of Probable Maximum Precipitation in Australia: Generalised Short-Duration Method (BoM, 2003) guidelines.

The PMP rainfall depth GSDM calculation focusses primarily on the project site and contributing catchments within Blayney Town. For the purpose of this assessment, it has been assumed that the relevant catchment is within ellipse A.

The input parameters utilised in the GSDM calculation are summarised below:

- Catchment Limit: 100km²
- Duration Limit: 6 hours
- Terrain Category: Smooth (S)
- Elevation Adjustment Factor (EAF): 1
- Moisture Adjustment Factor (MAF): 0.70

The resultant PMP rainfall depths and design temporal distribution are presented in Table 5-1 and Table 5-2.

Table 5-1: PMP rainfall depth

Time (minutes)	PMP Depth Estimate (mm)
15	162.4
30	235.2
45	297.5
60	345.1
90	394.1
120	439.6
180	493.5
240	539.7
360	615.3

Table 5-2: Design Temporal Distribution of Short Duration PMP (GSDM Calculation Method, BoM 2003)

% of the time	% of PMP
0	0
5	4
10	10
15	18
20	25
25	32
30	39
35	46
40	52
45	59
50	64
55	70
60	75
65	80
70	85
75	89
80	92
85	95
90	97

% of the time	% of PMP
95	99
100	100

5.1.2 Climate Change

A climate change scenario was modelled by adopting a conservative rainfall increase factor of 20.2%, assuming a representative concentration pathway (RCP) 8.5 scenario and extrapolating to the year 2090 based on ARR 2019 datahub.

5.1.3 XP-RAFTS Outputs

The XP-RAFTS model was run for the following events:

- 20% AEP: 25min 36 hour
- 5% AEP: 25min 36 hour
- 1% AEP: 25min 6 hour
- 1% AEP + Climate Change: 25min 6 hour
- PMF: 15min 6 hour

The critical duration (maximum) peak flows for each event are presented below in Table 5-3.

AEP (%)	Duration	Peak Flow (m3/s)
20	36 hour	2.2
5	1 hour	3.4
1	2 hour	7.7
1 + CC	2 hour	13.9
PMF	30 min	87.9

5.2 Hydraulic Modelling

Hydraulic modelling was undertaken based on ARR 2019 guidelines using the TUFLOW model developed for the Blayney Flood Study (Jacobs, 2015) and updated for the Blayney Flood Study Addendum (Storm Consulting, 2022). The TUFLOW model was reviewed and updated to ensure it was sufficiently detailed to assess the local flood risk at the project site and inform the flood immunity of the proposed design.

The key model updates include:

- Updated TUFLOW solver from Classic to HPC to reduce model simulation times.
- Incorporated revised LiDAR (2017). This LiDAR gives a greater cross-section to the drains and roadside swales, as well as provides better definition of the surfaces.
- Revised delineation of materials definition in the vicinity of the site
- Revised delineation of the building code layer within the vicinity of the site
- Minor updates to the representation of the drainage 1d-2d connections to better align with the major flowpaths and grid cell size.

The model a summary of the hydraulic model is presented in Table 5-4 with the model setup shown in Appendix A.

Table 5-4: TUFLOW Model Parameters

Parameter	Value
TUFLOW Release	2023-03-AE-iSP-w64
Solver	HPC
Hydrological Approach	XP-RAFTS hydrological flows applied as local (loc.ts1) and total (tot.ts1) hydrographs.
Boundary Conditions	Model extent = 12.2 km^2
	Inflows applied to the model domain according to the following:
	Regional riverine routed hydrographs applied directly to the 1D river network as 1D_BC QT point type boundaries.
	Local catchment routed hydrographs applied to the 1D river network as 1D_BC QT region type boundaries.
	Local catchment routed hydrographs applied to the drainage pits within the urban areas of Blayney as 2D_SA Pit type boundaries.
	Local catchment routed hydrographs applied to the model surface as 2D_SA type boundaries.
	Belubula River and Abattoir Creek represented in the 1D domain with 1D-2D connection defined as 2d_HX lines.
	Downstream boundary was defined as a 1d_BC point with a Height Time HQ automated slope boundary.
Grid Size	3m
Terrain	1m LiDAR (2017)
Hydraulic Structures	Transverse culverts and trunk drainage pipes based on survey undertaken by Geolyse Pty Ltd for the 2015 Blayney Flood Study.

5.3 Design Inputs

The following design elements were included in the design conditions TUFLOW model:

- 3D design surface of the finished floor level and civil landscaping elements supplied by NBRS as of 24 August 2024 as shown in Figure 5-1.
- Drainage swale 0.5m deep with 1:1 slopes located along the western boundary of the site as shown in Figure 5-2.
- A civil grading plan developed by Taylor Consulting Engineers (Figure 5-3)

The design conditions model setup shown in Appendix A.



1.1 1.2 1.3 14 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7

Cross-

ctional distance (m)

1



0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9



Figure 5-3 Civil grading plan developed by Taylor Consulting Engineers (27 September 2024).

5.3.1 Floor Levels

Floor levels of the facility have been adopted based on the design. These are:

- Residential aged care (RAC) wing: 874.85 m AHD
- Health One wing: 874.40 m AHD.
- Generator Room: 874.10 m AHD

5.4 Hydraulic Modelling Results

Mapping for the peak flood depth, level, velocity and hazard is presented in Appendix B and Appendix D.

5.4.1 Existing Conditions

Existing conditions flood modelling results (presented in Appendix B) shows:

- The major transverse culvert beneath the Mid-Western Highway convey the upstream catchment flows north through the existing Oldham Place swale as shown in Figure 5-4.
- The Oldham Place swale is breached in the 5% AEP event with overland flows passing east through the project site.



Figure 5-4: Existing conditions 1% AEP peak flood behaviour.

Flood hazard has been assessed in relation to flood depth and flood velocity. The generalised flood hazard curve outlined in ARR 2019 Book 5 Section 7.2.7 has been applied (ZAEM1). The output hazard values are 0 (zero) for no hazard and 1 to 6 for H1 to H6 respectively. Figure 5-5 outlines each of the Hazard Categories.

During the 1% AEP event the project site primarily shows a hazard category of up to H1 (generally safe for vehicles, people and buildings) with small patches of hazard category H3 (unsafe for vehicles, children and the elderly) observed at the Oldham Place entrance to the ambulance facility as shown in Figure 5-6.

During the PMF event the project site hazard categories of up to H5 (unsafe for vehicles and people. All building types vulnerable to structural damage) primarily contained within the internal roads of the site as shown in Figure 5-7.



Figure 5-5: General flood hazard vulnerability curve.



Figure 5-6: Existing conditions 1% AEP peak flood hazard.



Figure 5-7: Existing conditions PMF peak flood hazard.

5.4.2 Validation against previous assessment

A validation against the previous assessment (Blayney Flood Study Addendum, Storm Consulting, 2022) was completed with results tabulated in Table 5-5 and shown in Figure 5-8 which demonstrates that the updates to the model produce comparable results to the previous assessment.

Location	1% AEP Peak Flood Level (r	Change in water		
	Blayney Flood Study	Arup 2024		
А	879.52	879.53	0.01	
В	877.20	877.28	0.09	
С	874.60	874.66	0.06	
D	876.15	876.21	0.06	
Е	874.74	874.71	-0.03	

Table 5-5 C	omnarison	in 1% ΔFP	neak flood	elevation to	nrevious	assessment
10010 0 0.0	ompanoon		peak need	cicration to	provious	40000011011



Figure 5-8: Comparison to previous assessment.

5.4.3 Post Development Conditions – Unmitigated

Testing was undertaken of the Blayney MPS facility with no flood mitigations, with the results outlined in Appendix C). These result indicate that:

- Impacts of up to 35mm are observed immediately north of the site.
- Hazard of up to H4 (unsafe for vehicles and people) is observed at the Oldham Place entrance to the ambulance facility in the 1% AEP event.
- During the PMF event the project site hazard categories of up to H5 (unsafe for vehicles and people. All building types vulnerable to structural damage) primarily contained within the internal roads of the site as shown in Figure 5-11.
- Hazard of up to H5 (unsafe for vehicles and people. All building types vulnerable to structural damage) is observed at the Oldham Place entrance to the ambulance facility and the Osman Street entry and exit to the MPS precinct.
- During the 1% AEP event, the MPS precinct maintains flood free access to the Mid-Western Highway via the Osman Street entry and exits.
- During the PMF event, the MPS facility is isolated with the Oldham Place entrance to the ambulance facility inundated by up to 350mm, whilst the Osmam Street entry and exit inundated by up to 130mm.
- The overland flows travelling from the Ambulance Station and along the western boundary of the site potentially result in flooding over flood or the Residential Aged Care wing of approximately 300 mm (1% AEP flood level of 875.15 m, AHD).

5.4.4 Post Development Conditions – Diversion Swale

To address the overflow flooding, a diversion swale is recommended to divert the overland flows travelling form the Ambulance station and to preserve flood immunity. Design conditions flood modelling results including this diversion swale (presented in Appendix D) shows:

- Overland flow originating from the Oldham Place swale to the west of the site and transversing through the ambulance facility, is effectively captured by the proposed swale and directed north as shown in Figure 5-9.
- The proposed MPS precinct buildings achieve flood immunity to the 1% AEP flood event through the use of a channel to divert overland flows around the building. This channel has a top width of 1.5 m, and a total depth of 0.5 m (refer Figure 5-2), however this may be optimised to fit the available space. The existing flowpath passing along the Mid-Western highway at southern boundary of the site is cut off by the proposed works, resulting in a reduction in surface water flooding within properties immediately to the north-east of the site as demonstrated in Figure 5-12.
- Impacts of up to 35mm are also observed immediately north of the site as shown in Figure 5-12.
- The following observations can be made about flood hazard:
 - Hazard is shown to largely remain as H1 (generally safe for vehicles, people and buildings) in the 1% AEP event with a small patch of hazard category H3 (unsafe for vehicles, children and the elderly) observed where flows enter the proposed swale.
 - Hazard of up to H4 (unsafe for vehicles and people) is observed at the Oldham Place entrance to the ambulance facility in the 1% AEP event.
 - During the PMF event the project site hazard categories of up to H5 (unsafe for vehicles and people. All building types vulnerable to structural damage) primarily contained within the internal roads of the site as shown in Figure 5-11.
 - Hazard of up to H5 (unsafe for vehicles and people. All building types vulnerable to structural damage) is observed at the Oldham Place entrance to the ambulance facility and the Osman Street entry and exit to the MPS precinct.
- The following observations can be made about access to the site:
 - During the 1% AEP event, the MPS precinct maintains flood free access to the Mid-Western Highway via the Osman Street entry and exits. The western entrance to the ambulance facility is cut where the driveway crosses the Oldham Place swale with depths of up to 100mm observed as shown in Figure 5-9.
 - During the PMF event, the MPS facility is isolated with the Oldham Place entrance to the ambulance facility inundated by up to 350mm, whilst the Osmam Street entry and exit inundated by up to 130mm.

These results indicate that there is no material change between the approved design and the mitigation measures proposed with respect to flood depth, level or hydraulic hazard. As such, the implementation of the diversion swale does not increase the impacts to the community or the Lee Roshana Aged Care Facility.



Figure 5-9: Design conditions 1% AEP peak flood depth.



Figure 5-10: Design conditions PMF depth and velocity.



Figure 5-11: Design conditions PMF peak hydraulic hazard.



Figure 5-12: Design conditions 1% AEP peak flood impact.

5.5 Rate of Rise and Warning Times

The rate of rise of floodwaters at the key locations presented in Figure 5-13 are shown in Figure 5-14 to Figure 5-17 for the PMF event. It is noted that the key locations identified within the MPS Precinct (Locations 1-4) are only impacted in the PMF event.

The warning time for flows originating from upstream of the site is presented in Figure 5-18 and Figure 5-19. Notably, once overland flow levels have commenced rising, during an extreme event such as the PMF, the levels may rise rapidly and potentially exceed floor levels in affected areas within minutes.



Figure 5-13: Reporting locations – Design conditions PMF peak flood depth.



Figure 5-14: Rate of rise of PMF event within western courtyard.



Figure 5-15: Rate of rise of PMF event at southern boundary of Residential Aged Care facility.







Figure 5-17: Rate of rise of PMF event at north-western boundary of Support and Mortuary unit.



Figure 5-18 Flow hydrograph at Oldham Place


Figure 5-19 Flow hydrograph at the Ambulance Station

5.6 Blockage

This assessment has considered the blockage factors as applied in the exiting Council Flood study provided to undertake this study. This retained a zero blockage on the inlet to many of the major culverts. Hower, as this site is located downstream of many of the major culverts, this has the effect of maximising the flow rate through the town and across the site. As such, this represents a conservative envelope of blockage for this particular site.

A sensitivity assessment on the potential blockage has been completed for the major culvert transversing the Mid-Western Highway directly upstream of the site. A blockage factor of 50% has been tested as a sensitivity for the 1% AEP existing conditions scenario. Results from the blockage sensitivity scenario are presented in Figure 5-20. This demonstrates that in the case that the major transverse culvert immediately upstream of the site is blocked by debris, a large portion of flow is diverted to the east along the southern side of the Mid-Western Highway. At the site, surface water levels are reduced by up to 50mm.



Figure 5-20: Blockage sensitivity 1% AEP peak flood impact.

5.7 Flooding Summary

The flooding results are consistent with the types of overland flow typical of urban areas such as the Blayney township. The flooding results indicate that the site is not affected by the Mainstream flooding associated with the Belubula River for all events up to and including the PMF.

Minor overland flows (up to the 20% AEP) event also do not affect the site, with mapping of the 20% AEP indicating that overland flow s in this event bypass the site along the existing drainage system. As such, aside from managing the direct rainfall that falls on the site, additional drainage network is not expected to be required.

The site is however affected by rarer overland flow events, such as the 1% AEP flood. To protect the building, the design includes a swale that is cut into the terrain along the southwestern side. This intercepts overland flows that may traverse the site. With the inclusion of an appropriate diversion swale, the immunity of the southwestern building can be maintained.

However, as the development intercepts the overland flows that would otherwise cross the site from west to east, flowing downhill towards the Belubula River, the level of the overland flows is increased in the southern portion of Queen Street. This may increase the inundation level at some of the dwellings by up to 35 mm. In this area, overland flow depths are shallow (less than 0.2 m) and the affected dwellings are elevated by approximately 300 mm (notwithstanding garage spaces and other typically non-habitable areas). As such the changes will not increase over floor flooding in the 1% AEP event. That is, areas that may already be subject to inundation in events up to and in including the 1% AEP will still be subject to inundation, while areas that are not subject to inundation are not expected to receive additional over. Note that this inundation is as a result of the MPS building and earthworks, and is not related to the proposed swale.

Flooding currently results in potentially hazardous in Queen Street, with a hydraulic hazard of H5 (Unsafe for vehicles and people. All building types vulnerable to structural damage). This maximum hazard is not affected by the proposal, with the hydraulic hazard category remaining unchanged for the PMF. However,

Blayney Multipurpose Service Flood Risk Assessment there is a minor escalation in the flood hazard for the 1% AEP event, with some localised areas escalating from H1 (Generally safe for vehicles, people and buildings) to H2 (Unsafe for small vehicles). This escalation doesn't exceed the hydraulic hazard threshold for the elderly or children.

Hydraulic hazard mapping is an indication of the potential flood risk only, and is based on hydraulic factors only. The actual flood hazard during an event may vary for a range of factors beyond those identified here. As such, the SES recommends avoiding evacuating through flood water. As such, the potential for evacuation risk is substantially unchanged as a result of the Blayney MPS.

5.7.1 Minimum Floor Levels

In order to meet the NSW Health Infrastructure requirements the finished floors to be above the 1% AEP flood. Due to the resolution of the model, the flood levels reported in the swale must be calculated using a backwater calculation based on the flow and connecting hydraulic conditions. These minimum are outlined in Table 6.

Table 6 Minimum floor levels

Location	Proposed floor Level	1% AEP flood level
Residential aged care (RAC) wing	874.85 m AHD	874.78 m AHD
Health One wing	874.40 m AHD	874.38 m AHD
Generator Room	874.10 m AHD	Not Affected

5.7.2 Pollution Risk

The current proposal reduces the potential for overflow flooding in all events up to the 1% AEP. This is an improvement as compared to the current health facilities. As such, the potential for pollution associated with inundation of the facilities is reduced.

5.7.3 Impact to structures

The detailed design of the building structures will need to consider the resilience to flooding and inundation. Guidance is provided regarding flood resilient infrastructure including:

- Information Handbook: Construction of Buildings in Flood Hazard Area (ACBC, 2012)
- ABCB Standard: Construction of buildings in flood hazard areas (ACBC, 2012)
- Flood Damage-Resistant Materials Requirements for Buildings Located in Special Flood Hazard Areas in accordance with the National Flood Insurance Program (FEMA 2008)
- Flood Resilient Building Guidance for Queensland Homes (Queensland Reconstruction Authority, 2019)

These guidelines require the use of flood resilient material and construction techniques below the 1% AEP flood level, and provide some specific guidance regarding suitable materials. They also provide guidance on ensuring that the construction is flood resilient.

6. Flood Emergency Response

The Blayney MPS has an existing emergency response plan: Blayney Health Service Emergency Management Plan & Standing Operating Procedures (Western NSW Local Health District, 2021). This plan outlines the response to a range of emergency management scenarios. A flood emergency would be managed under the plan for a *Code Orange*.

The hydraulic hazard mapping for the site indicates that in an extreme event such as the PMF, there may be high hazards (H3, H4 and H5) associated with the overland flows surrounding portions of the building (Figure 6-1). However, these only affect the southwestern wing (Residential Aged Care). Other facilities, including the inpatient unit, clinical support, shared services, emergency and reception are not directly impacted by significant hydraulic hazard, and the depth of any over floor inundation is shallow.



Figure 6-1 Provisional hydraulic hazard at the site.

6.1 Emergency response plan modifications

Noting that rapid rise in overland flow levels during an extreme event, as well as the high hazard in specific areas, it is adviasable that any evacuation be onsite, moving from flood affected areas to non-flood affected areas within the facility. If further evacuation (Stage 3) is required, it is advisable that this is done via Osman Street and only following an storm or flood event. Evacuation along Queen Street may be inadviasable due to the hydraulic hazard that may be associated with overland flows.

Modification of the Blayney Health Service Emergency Management Plan & Standing Operating Procedures to advise of separate procedures during a flood event is recommended.

6.2 Flood Monitoring

Resources are currently available to assist in monitoring flood risks and to ensure that any flood warnings are responded to promptly. Resources form the BoM and SES will provide advance notice of potentially hazardous conditions. However, reliance should not be placed on any single data source.

6.2.1 Bureau of Meteorology (BoM)

BoM have several services available to warn of flooding or hazardous storm conditions. These include:

- Severe Thunderstorm Warning Services to alert communities of more dangerous thunderstorms
- Severe Weather Warning Services provide notification when severe weather is occurring in an area or expected to move into an area. Severe Weather Warnings include notification of very heavy rain that may lead to flash flooding.
- Flood Watch BoM issues a Flood Watch to provide early advice of a developing situation that may lead to flooding.
- Flood Warnings are provided by BoM to advice that flooding is occurring or expected to occur in an area based on defined criteria.

6.2.2 State Emergency Services (SES)

The SES operates several tools for monitoring and notifying flood risks. These include:

- SES website Warnings available through the SES website
- NSW SES social media channels
- Hazard Watch an online platform for accessing weather warnings.
- ABC radio reporting of weather warnings.

6.2.3 On-site monitoring

Flood conditions can vary dynamically, and it is expected that once hospital management have been alerted to potential conditions, some monitoring of the outside conditions will be required. It is advisable to monitor the carpark and surround areas for signs of inundation, for example, notable overland flows.

6.3 Flood Response

The appropriate flood response should be reflective of the flood risk. Most storm events, including incidents of riverine flooding, will represent an abnormal operating condition for the facility, however, are unlikely to significantly affect the facility in a way that presents a risk to those inside the facility:

6.3.1 Before a storm

During routine operation of the facility, some monitoring of the weather and potential for flood is required by facility managers. If storm or flood warning are received, this will require an adjustment to the operating procedure to reflect the potential for inundation and flood hazard in the surrounding area.

- Monitor the BoM, SES and Council for forecasts of potentially hazardous storm events.
- If notification is received, review admissions, staffing and inventory to reflect the potential hazard.
- Review emergency response systems to ensure that they are functional.
- Remind key staff of their roles and responsibilities.
- Provide a briefing to all staff making them aware of the potential hazard.

6.3.2 During a storm

During a storm event, a more active posture will be required to respond to changes in the situation. Actions include:

- Visually monitor condition surrounding the site (for example, in Queens Street, Osman Street and in the carpark).
- Monitor internal systems such as power, water, IT and medical gas.
- Provide appropriate information and assurance to staff and patients.
- If necessary, escalate the incident condition.
- Relocate within the facility if inundation is noted.

6.3.3 After a storm

Following a storm event, a number of actions will be required to ensure that the facility (in its entirety) is safe, and to restore functionality.

- Check power is safe.
- Check all levels and spaces for damage and report to management.
- Commence cleaning and recovery if necessary.

6.3.4 Recovery actions

If the facility has sustained damage during a storm or flood, the operations will need to be reviewed to ensure the on-going safety of all staff and patients. Once the order to stand down has been issued, this may include:

- Review patient load, and transfer patients to other facilities, discharge them or resume the functions at other sites within the precinct as appropriate.
- Transition functions to other facilities (e.g. Canowindra or Cowra).
- Undertake electrical inspections.
- Damage review (check all rooms and spaces).
- Cleaning.
- Repair or replacement of damaged equipment.

6.4 **Communications**

During an incident, communications are to be managed by the hospital management, or other delegates in accordance with the disaster response plan. This plan will also include documentation on the distribution of information to other key staff, nurses and doctors, and to patients. Where applicable and feasible, administration staff may be required to control admissions and discharges around the hazard conditions.

During all flooding and storm events, staff and patients are to be reminded about the SES advice to not drive through floodwater.

6.4.1 Communications equipment

To co-ordinate with other agencies, communications equipment compatible with the SES and other response agencies will be required. Consultation with the local SES unit to confirm the communications requirements is advised.

6.5 Flood Plan Documentation

It will be necessary to develop, document and train the appropriate personnel in the appropriate flood response actions, including:

- How flood warnings are monitored/received.
- How flood warnings are to be communicated to the occupiers of the building/site.
- Who is responsible for activating the flood response. Ensuring that contact numbers are available for individual(s) responsible for the managing the flood response.
- Headcount for occupiers/evacuees.
- Identifying post-flood responses including assisting individuals in their exit from site is a safe manner with consideration of potential new hazards arising from flooding.

These actions are to be undertaken as part of the next Emergency plan update.

7. Conclusions and Recommendations

The town of Blayney is affected by both riverine flooding (associated with the Belubula River), local catchment flooding (associated with the gulleys and stormwater channels though the town), and overland flows that traverse the urban area. These event may produce some significant hydraulic hazards within the urban areas. However, these hydraulic hazards are consistent with the extreme rainfall events associated with the PMF, and similar hazards in these events are common throughout NSW. As such, flooding and extreme rainfall, as well as associated hazards such and high winds and storms, represent a significant flood hazard that should be considered in the planning of any development.

However, the exiting Council mapping indicates that this site is not affected by mainstream flooding associated with the Belubula River, nor is it affected directly by local catchment flooding (Section 2.2). As such, the flooding issues that do affect the site are overland flows, including overland flows that have escaped the drainage system at Oldham Place and passes through the Ambulance station west of the Blayney MPS site.

Modelling undertaken for this project has indicated that minor and nuisance overland flows (20% AEP do not affect the site. These overland flows only affect the site in rare events such as the 1% AEP event. With an appropriate drainage swale along the batter slow on the western boundary, the required immunity from overland flows can be maintained for the Residential Aged Care building (Finished floor level of 874.85m AHD) and the Emergency Department building (finished floor level of 874.40 m AHD). As such, the flood immunity requirements of NSW Health are achieved. This swale would connect with the flow in Queen Street, in keeping with the major / minor principle outlined in the Guidelines for Engineering Works (WBC Strategic Alliance, 2009).

Due to the shallow flows some high flood hazard (categories H3, H4 and H5) is noted in areas around the hospital. However, this will only affect the southwestern corner of the facility. The residual flooding risk can be managed with on-site relocation inside the facility if required.

It is noted that as the development does intercept existing overland flows and direct them towards Queen Street. This may result in some afflux may be noted at properties in this area. However, the depths of flooding are shallow, even in rare events such as the 1% AEP storm. Many properties already affected in this event to some degree. Due to the shallow overland flows, it is unlikely that this results in additional over floor flooding to neighbouring properties. This change is also not materially different to the current approved design. Opportunities to minimise this would require significant drainage work through the Blayney township.

With the above measures, the flood risk to those inside the facility, and the surrounding community, can be minimised. However, many of the risks are associated with shallow overland flows, and affect the town more broadly, and so are not specific to the site.

7.1 Recommendations

To enable the flood risk to both the community, staff and patients of the Blayney MPS, the following flood management measures are recommended:

- An appropriately sized drainage swale be installed along the western boundary (at the base of the batter slope) to carry intercepted overland flows an maintain the required flood immunity for the facility.
- The *Blayney Health Service Emergency Management Plan & Standing Operating Procedures* be updated to address flooding directly. In the event that the facility becomes inundated, those in the affected sections of the hospital are to be directed to other parts of the facility as a safer place.
 - The plan should indicate that in the event of a flood, evacuation via Queen Street is not advised.
 - If further evacuation off site (Stage 3 Evacuation) is required, this should be organised via the Osman Street access, and only when safe to do so.

- Off-site evacuation should consider both local conditions (in the streets surrounding the MPS and directly observable from the facility), as well as the regional flood conditions. The plan should direct that this may require co-ordination with the local SES commander to understand regional flood conditions.
- A stockpile of flood management materials should be maintained on site. This includes sandbags, mops, communications devices for communicating with the SES and other agencies and other cleaning equipment to control local inundation on site.
- SES material regarding flood safety, including advisories to not drive through floodwater should be obtained, and displayed within the facility when commissioned (for example, on an appropriate notice board).
- Maintain facilities to transfer patents to other facilities following a flood or storm event.
 - Any changes to the vehicles maintained on-site should be in response to an operational risk review and update of the *Blayney Health Service Emergency Management Plan & Standing Operating Procedures*.
- The building should consider management of overland flows and drainage along all building perimeters where there is catchment area that could runoff towards the building, even if this is not identified as flooding.

References

Bureau of Meteorology, 2003, The Estimation of Probable Maximum Precipitation in Australia: Generalised Short-Duration Method.

Jacobs, 2015, Blayney Flood Study, Blayney Shire Council. Prepared for Blayney Shire Council

Storm Consulting, 2022, Addendum-to-Blayney-flood-study Prepared for Blayney Shire Council

Western NSW Local Health District, 2021, Blayney Health Service Emergency Management Plan & Standing Operating Procedures

Appendix A Flood Model Configuration



Legend Model Boundary Contours 2d_code_bldgs 2d_zsh_gully 2d_zsh_ridge 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes 2d_bc_culverts CN SX Project Title Blayney Multipurpose Service Drawing Title TUFLOW Model Setup - Existing						
29528	9		F	igure 1		
Coordinat	e System		Dr	awing Status		
GDA20	20 one 55		D	Draft		
Scale						
0	50 1	100	1	50 m		
				1		
А	26/09/2024	Tł	H	тн	JA	
Issue	Date	B	Y	Chkd	Appd	
Client			C	onsultant		
4	YZE			ADI	ID	
GOV	SW		L S	ky Park. One Melbourne Quarter. Be Collins Street, Docklands.	1	
Health I	nfrastructure	9	v	ic 3008, Australia		
Disclaime	r					
© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	. All	Rights Reserve	d N	
Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document.						



Legend Project Area Model Boundary ---- Contours 2d_sa_pits 2d_code_bldgs 2d_sa 1d_bc 2d_bc_B_HX_R 2d_bc_culverts CN SX 2d_bc_B_HX_L CN HX 1d_nwk_channels **----** W S 🗧 - В Project Title Blayney Multipurpose Service Drawing Title **TUFLOW Model Boundary Conditions - Existing** Job No Figure No 295289 Figure 2 Coordinate System Drawing Status GDA2020 Draft MGA Zone 55 Scale 150 m 50 100 0 26/09/2024 ΤH TH JA Α By Chkd Date Appd Issue Client Consultant ARUP NSW Health Infrastructure Disclaimer N © Arup Australia Pty Ltd 2024. All Rights Reserved Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document. Sources: Data.NSW, Google



-		-20					
	Lidar	Legend Project Area Model Boundary Contours 2d_zsh_gully 2d_zsh_ridge LiDAR (m AHD) 900 860					
	Project Tit	le					
	Blayne	ey Multip	urpo	se S	Service		
	TUFL - Exis	oW Mo ting	del	Тор	oograph	У	
	Job No 295289	Ð		Fig Fi	gure No i gure 3		
	Coordinate	e Svstem		Dra	awing Status		
	GDA20 MGA Z	20 one 55		D	raft		
-	Scale 0	50 1	100	15	50 m		
				_			
	Δ	26/09/2024	т	4	тн	JA	
	lesuo	Date	B	,	Chkd	Appd	
	Client	Date		,		Лрри	
	Health Ir	SW frastructure	9	A Sk Sk Sk Sk	ARU Park, One Melbourne Guarter 9 Ootine Birret, Docklands, 31008, Australia	P	
in the second	Disclaime	i S					
	© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	. All I	Rights Reserve	d N	
	Disclaimer ensure the and accur contained reliance p of the us prior to us Sources: I	: While all e information rate, no war on this is fi laced on sucl er. Please ve sing it. This n Data.NSW, G	reasona contai ranty i ree fror h inform erify the nap is n oogle	able of ned o s give nation e acc ot a o	are has been n this map is o en that the in error or omis shall be at th uracy of all in design docume	taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation ent.	
The							







Legend Project Area Model Boundary Contours 2d_zsh_gully 2d_zsh_ridge ↓ 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes Proposed Swale						
2u_D(CN					
_	SX					
	2d_code_	bldg	S			
-						
Project Tit	^{lle} Av Multini	irno	se S	Service		
Diayin	y manapa	aipo				
Drawing T TUFL Desig	Title OW Mo	del	Set	up -		
Job No			Fig	gure No	;	
29528	9		Fi	igure 5		
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dr D	awing Status r aft		
Scale	F0 11			-0		
	50 1(00	15	o m		
A	26/09/2024	TH	4	TH	JA	
Issue	Date	By	/	Chkd	Appd	
Client			Co	onsultant		
4	SW		F	ARU	J P	
GOV Health lu	ERNMENT		5k 69 V1	y Park. One Melbourne Cuarter. 9 Collins Street, Docklands, 2 3008, Australia		
Disclaime	r					
© Arup A	ustralia Pty Lt	d 2024	. All I	Rights Reserve		
© Arup Australia Pty Ltd 2024. All Rights Reserved Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document.						
Sources: Data.NSW, Google						



Lege	nd						
	Project A	rea					
	Model Boundary						
	Contours						
7	2d sa pi	ts					
	2d sa						
	1d bc						
	2d bc B	нх	R				
2d b							
2u_00	CN	•					
_	SX						
2d bo	B HX L						
	CN						
	НΧ						
1d_nv	wk_chanr	nels					
-	w						
-	S						
-	В						
	2d code	blda	S				
			50				
Project Tit	le Multin		~~ (Sonvice			
Diayite	y wanp	urpo	36 1	Service			
Drawing T	ītle						
TUFL	OW Mo	del	Во	undary			
Cond	itions -	Des	igr	1			
Job No	•		Fig	jure No			
29528	9		F	gure 6			
Coordinat	e System		Dra	awing Status			
MGA Z	one 55		D	raft			
Scale 0	50 1	.00	15	50 m			
			_				
Δ	26/09/2024	тн	4	тн	.IA		
<u>A</u>							
Issue	Date	By	/	Chkd	Appd		
Client			Co	nsultant			
4			1	ARI	IP		
GOV	ERNMENT		Sk 69 VI	Park. One Melbourne Guarter. 9 Collins Street, Docklands, 2 3008, Australia	-		
Health I	nfrastructure)					
Disclaime	r						
© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	. All I	Rights Reserve	d N		
Disclaime ensure the	r: While all i e information	contaii	ible oned o	are has been n this map is (an that the ir	taken to up to date		
contained	on this is fr	ree from	n the	error or omi	sion. Any		
contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk							
of the us	laced on such er. Please ve	n inform erify the	ation acc	shall be at th uracy of all in	e sole risk formation		









Appendix B Existing Conditions Results



Legend Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes						
Depth (m) <= 0.05 0.05 - 0.10 0.10 - 0.20 0.20 - 0.30 0.30 - 0.40 0.40 - 0.50 0.50 - 1.00 1.00 - 2.50 > 2.50 Water Level Contour (m AHD)						
roject Tit layne	^{le} y Multipu	urpos	se S	ervice		
Prawing T Existi	^{itte} ng 20%	AE	PC	Depth		
lob No 29528	9		Fig Fi	jure No gure 9		
GDA20	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status r aft		
icale)	25		50	75 r	n	
A	26/09/2024	Tŀ	ł	ТН	JA	
ssue	Date	By	/	Chkd	Appd	
SSUE Client	Date	By	Co Co	Chkd insultant ARUC Park. One Meloure Duate: Castes Bred, Cossings, 2006. Auenas	Appd	



Legend Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes						
Depth (m) <= 0.05 0.05 - 0.10 0.10 - 0.20 0.20 - 0.30 0.30 - 0.40 0.40 - 0.50 0.50 - 1.00 1.00 - 2.50 > 2.50 Water Level Contour (m AHD)						
Project Title Blayney Multipurpose Service Drawing Title						
Job No 29528	9		Fig Fi	jure No gure 10		
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	Coordinate System Drawing Status GDA2020 MGA Zone 55 Draft					
Scale						
Scale 0	25		50	75 r	n	
Scale 0	25		50	75 r	n	
Scale 0 A	25	Tŀ	50 	75 r TH	n JA	
Scale 0 A Issue	25 26/09/2024 Date	TH	50 	TH Chkd	n JA Appd	
Scale 0 A Issue Client	25 26/09/2024 Date	TH	50 H / Co	75 r TH Chkd Insultant ARUC 1986 Destands, 1986 Australia	n JA Appd	



Legend Project Area Model Boundary ────────────────────────────────────						
Depth (m) < = 0.05 0.05 - 0.10 0.10 - 0.20 0.20 - 0.30 0.30 - 0.40 0.40 - 0.50 0.50 - 1.00 1.00 - 2.50 > 2.50 Water Level Contour (m AHD)						
Project Title Blayney Multipurpose Service Drawing Title Existing 1% AEP Depth						
295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Fi Dra Di	gure 11 awing Status raft		
Scale	25		50	75 -	n	
	25	à.	50	/51	u/	
Δ	26/09/2024	т	4	тн	.IA	
			•			
Issue	Date	В	/	Chkd	Appd	
Health In	SW frastructure		L A Ster VIC	ARU Park. One Melbourne Guarter. Colline Broet, Docklands. 3008. Australia	P	
Disclaime	ł					
© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	. All F	Rights Reserve	d N	
Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document.						
Sources: Data.NSW, Google						





Lege	nd Droject A					
Н	Model Re	rea	-			
ш	Contours	unua	гy			
	10_nwk_	cuive	rts			
	Id_nwk_	pipes				
<pre></pre>						
Project Title Blayney Multipurpose Service Drawing Title Existing PMF Depth						
29528	Ð		Fi	igure 13		
Coordinate GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status r aft		
Scale						
0	25	2	50	75 r	n	
<u>.</u>						
А	26/09/2024	Tł	ł	TH	JA	
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd	
Client			Co	onsultant		
N Gov Health Ir	SW FRNMENT		Sk 69	ARC y Park, One Melbourne Quarter 6 Collins Street, Docklands, 3 1008, Australia	P	
Disclaime	ł					
© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	. All I	Rights Reserve	d N	
© Arup Australia Pty Ltd 2024. All Rights Reserved N Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document.						
Sources: Data.NSW, Google						



Lege	end Project A	rea				
H	Model Bo	unda	arv			
	Contours		ii y			
	1d nwk	, culve	orts			
	1d_nwk	nines	:			
	10_1111(_	pipes				
Level (m AHD) 890 860 — Water Level Contour (m AHD)						
Project Ti	tle					
Blayne	y Multipu	urpos	se S	ervice		
Drawing 1	ītle					
Existi	ina 20%	AE	ΡV	Vater		
Level	5					
Job No			Fig	gure No		
29528	9		F	igure 14		
Coordinat	e System		Dra	awing Status		
MGA Z	one 55		D	raft		
Scale						
0	25		50	75 r	n	
215	-					
A	26/09/2024	Tł	H	TH	JA	
Issue	Date	B	y	Chkd	Appd	
Client			Co	onsultant		
4	YUS-		1	ARI	IP	
GOV	ERNMENT		Sk 69	y Park. One Melbourne Guarter. 6 Collins Street, Docklands, C 3008 Australia		
Health I	nfrastructure	9				
Disclaime	r					
© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	I. All I	Rights Reserve	d N	
Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document.						



Lege	e nd Project A	rea			
Ы	Model Bo	unda	irv		
	Contours				
-	1d nwk	culve	orts		
	1d_nwk	nines	:		
	IU_IIWK_	pipes	2		
Level	(m AHD 890 860 Water Le) vel C	ont	our (m AH	D)
Project Ti					
Blayne	y Multipu	irpos	se S	ervice	
Drawing T	ītle				
Existi	ng 5%	AEP	w	ater Lev	el
Job No 29528	9		Fiç F i	^{gure No} igure 15	
Coordinat	e System		Dr	awing Status	
GDA20	20		D	raft	
MGA Z	one 55				
Scale 0	25		50	75 r	n
A	26/09/2024	Tł	4	ТН	JA
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd
Client			Co	onsultant	
N Gov				ARU 9 Calle Street, Docklands, 2 Calle Street, Docklands, 2 Calle Assuration	JP
Health II	nfrastructure)			-
Disclaime	r				
© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	. All I	Rights Reserve	d N
Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document.					
Sources:	Data, NSW, G	pogle			



Legend Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes						
 Id_nwk_pipes Level (m AHD) 890 860 Water Level Contour (m AHD) 						
Project Tit	le					
Blayne	y Multipi	urpos	se S	ervice		
Drawing T Existi	itte ing 1%	AEP	W	ater Lev	el	
Job No	•		Fig	jure No		
Z95Z8	9 Sustem		F	gure 16		
GDA20 MGA Z	20 one 55		Di	raft		
Scale 0	25		50	75 r	n	
10 10					20	
А	26/09/2024	Tł	ł	TH	JA	
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd	
Client Client Client Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant						
Disclaime		а. 				
© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	. All f	Rights Reserve		
Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document.						







Lege									
	Legend								
Project Area									
Model Boundary									
Contours									
\rightarrow	1d_nwk_	culve	rts						
_	1d_nwk_	pipes	5						
Level (m AHD) 890 860 Water Level Contour (m AHD)									
Project Tit	le Multime			andes					
Біаупе	y munipi	upos	se a	ervice					
Drawing T	ītle								
Existi	ing PMI	F Wa	Existing PMF Water Level						
Job No Figure No									
Job No			Fiç	gure No					
Job No 29528	9		Fiç F i	gure No igure 18					
Job No 29528 Coordinat	9 e System		Fiç F i	gure No igure 18 awing Status					
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Z	9 e System 20 one 55		Fiç Fi	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft					
Job No 29528 Coordinat GDA20 MGA Zo	9 e System 20 one 55		Fig Fi Dra D	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft					
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25		Fig Fi Dra D	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft 75 r	n				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25		Fig Dra D	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft 75 r	n				
Job No 295283 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Scale	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024	Тŀ	Fiç Fi Dr. 50	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft 75 m 75 m	n JA				
Job No 295283 GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0 A Issue	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Tŀ	Fiç Fi Dr: 50	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft 75 r 75 r 75 r TH Chkd	n JA Appd				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 A Scale 0 A Scale 0 L Scale 0 L Scale 0 L Scale 0 L Scale	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Tŀ	Fig Dr/ 50 H	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft 75 r 75 r 75 r 75 r 76 TH Chkd	n JA Appd				
Job No 295283 Coordinate GDA200 MGA Zo Scale 0 Scale 0 A Issue Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	ТН	Fig Fi Dr: 50 H	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft 75 r 75 r 75 r 76 TH Chkd	n JA Appd				
Job No 29528 GDA20 MGA Z Scale 0 A Issue Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Тŀ Ву	Fig Fi Dr: 50	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m	n JA Appd				
Job No 295283 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH By	Fig Dr 50	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft 75 m 75 m TH Chkd onsultant Chkd	n JA Appd				
Job No 295283 Coordinat GDA200 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client Client Client Health In	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Tŀ By	Fię Fi Dr. 50 H Ccc	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 76 TH Chkd onsultant	n JA Appd				
Job No 295283 Coordinat GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Uisclaimee © Arup A	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date	TH By att 2024	Fig Dr. D 50 H Ccc	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft 75 m 75 m 75 m 71 Chkd onsultant Chkd onsultant	n JA Appd JP				
Job No 295283 Coordinat GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Uisclaime © Arup A Disclaime	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date	TH By td 2024 reasona	Fig Dr. D 50 H Ccc	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft 75 m 75 m 75 m 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76	n JA Appd JP				
Job No 295283 Coordinat GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Uisclaimer © Arup A Disclaimer ensure th and accu	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date	TH By td 2024 reasona i contaii rranty is	Fig Dr. D 50 H Ccc	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m	n JA Appd JP d Co taken to up to date formation				
Job No 295283 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Client Disclaimer ensure th and accu contained reliance p	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date	Th By td 2024 reasona contain ranty is ree from re from	Fig Fi Dr. D 50 H Ccc All I Able c ned o s give n attor	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft 75 m 75 m 75 m 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76 76	n JA Appd JP d Co taken to up to date formation ssion. Any e sole risk				
Job No 295283 Coordinat GDA200 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 A Scale 0 Client Client Client Client Disclaimed reliance p of the us prior to us	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date Ustralia Pty L r: While all e information rate, no war on this is fi laced on suct er. Please ve sing it. This n	Th By td 2024 reasona contain ranty is ree from h inform erify the nap is n	Fig Dr. D 50 H Ccc A All I able c ned o s given n the nation	gure No igure 18 awing Status raft 75 m 75 m 75 m 76 75 m 76 76 m 76 76 m 76 76 m 76 m 76 m 76	n JA Appd JP d taken to up to date formation sion. Any e sole risk formation nt.				



Legend Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes						
Velocity (m/s) <pre> <= 0.5 0.5 - 1.0 1.0 - 1.5 1.5 - 2.0 > 2.0 </pre>						
Project Ti Blayne Drawing	tie y Multipu Title ing 20%	urpos	se S P V	ervice /elocity		
Job No 29528	9		Fig F i	gure No igure 19		
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dr D	awing Status raft		
Scale 0	25		50	75 r	n	
					~	
A	26/09/2024	Tł	ł	тн	JA	
Issue	Date	B	Y	Chkd	Appd	
Client Client Client Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant						
Disclaimer © Arup Australia Pty Ltd 2024. All Rights Reserved Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document. Sources: Data.NSW, Google						



Legend Project Area Model Boundary ────────────────────────────────────							
Velocity (m/s) <pre> <= 0.5 0.5 - 1.0 1.0 - 1.5 1.5 - 2.0 > 2.0 </pre>							
Project Tri Blayne Drawing T Exist	Project Title Blayney Multipurpose Service Drawing Title Existing 5% AFP Velocity						
Job No 29528	9		Fig F i	gure No igure 20			
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dr. D	awing Status raft			
Scale 0	25		50	75 r	n		
A	26/09/2024	Tł	4	тн	JA		
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd		
Client Client Client COVERNMENT Health Infrastructure							
Disclaimer © Arup Australia Pty Ltd 2024. All Rights Reserved Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document. Sources: Data.NSW, Google							



Legend Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes						
Velocity (m/s) <pre> <= 0.5 0.5 - 1.0 1.0 - 1.5 1.5 - 2.0 > 2.0 </pre>						
Project Tr Blayne Drawing T Exist	tle y Multipu Fitte ing 1% /	urpos AEP	se S	ervice		
Job No 29528	9 e System		Fig F	gure No igure 21		
GDA20 MGA Z	20 one 55		D	raft		
Scale 0	25		50	75 r	n	
A	26/09/2024	Tł	ł	тн	JA	
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd	
Client Client Client Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant ARUP Bio Coles Brow Docume. Coles Brow Docume. Stor Park. On Mediume Counter. Bio Coles Brow Docume. VIC 308, Aurasia						
Disclaimer © Arup Australia Pty Ltd 2024. All Rights Reserved Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document. Sources: Data.NSW. Google						



Legend Project Area Model Boundary ──── Contours → 1d_nwk_culverts ──── 1d_nwk_pipes						
Velocity (m/s) <pre> <= 0.5 0.5 - 1.0 1.0 - 1.5 1.5 - 2.0 > 2.0 </pre>						
Project Tit Blayne	tle y Multipu Title	urpos	se S	ervice		
Existi Veloc	ing 1% . itv	AEP	+ (СС		
Job No 29528	9		Fig F i	gure No i gure 22		
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status r aft		
Scale 0	25		50	75 ו	n	
А	26/09/2024	Tł	ł	ТН	JA	
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd	
Client	Client Client Client Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant					
Disclaime	r					
© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	. All I	Rights Reserve		
© Arup Australia Pty Ltd 2024. All Rights Reserved Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document.						



Legend Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes						
Velocity (m/s) <pre> <= 0.5 0.5 - 1.0 1.0 - 1.5 1.5 - 2.0 > 2.0 </pre>						
Project Tri Blayne Drawing T Exist	tle y Multipu Title ing PMI	urpos F Ve	se S	ervice ity		
Job No 29528 Coordinat GDA20	9 e System 9 20		Fig Fi	gure No igure 23 awing Status raft		
MGA Z	one 55			ian		
Scale 0	25		50	75 r	n	
A	26/09/2024	Tł	4	тн	JA	
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd	
Client Client Client Coverniment Coverniment Coverniment Coverniment Coverniment Coverniment Coverniment Coverniment Coverniment Coverniment Coverniment Coverniment						
Disclaime	r					
© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	. All I	Rights Reserve	d N	
© Arup Australia Pty Ltd 2024. All Rights Reserved Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document.						



	Legend Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes						
 Hazard H1 Generally safe for vehicles, people and buildings. H2 Unsafe for small vehicles. H3 Unsafe for vehicles, children and the elderly. H4 Unsafe for vehicles and people. H5 Unsafe for vehicles and people. All building types vulnerable to structural damage. H6 Unsafe for vehicles and people. All building types considered vulnerable to failure. 							
Project Tit	le v Multini	irnos		onvice			
Drawing T Existi Hazar	ing 20%	AE	ΡF	lood			
Job No			Fig	gure No			
Coordinate GDA20	e System 20		Dra	awing Status			
Scale		2					
0	25	2	50	75 r	n		
L							
А	26/09/2024	Tł	ł	TH	JA		
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd		
Client Client Client Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant Consultant							
Disclaime	r						
© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	. All I	Rights Reserve	d N		
(c) Arup Australia Pty Ltd 2024. All Rights Reserved Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document.							


Lege	nd	1222			
Ы	Project A	rea			
		unda	ry		
			uto		
	Id_nwk_	cuive	rts		
	Ia_nwk_	pipes			
 Id_nwk_pipes Hazard H1 Generally safe for vehicles, people and buildings. H2 Unsafe for small vehicles. H3 Unsafe for vehicles, children and the elderly. H4 Unsafe for vehicles and people. H5 Unsafe for vehicles and people. All building types vulnerable to structural damage. H6 Unsafe for vehicles and people. All building types considered vulnerable to failure. 					
Blayne	y Multipu	irpos	se S	ervice	
Drawing T	ītle				
Existi Hazaı	ng 5% / d	AEP	FI	ood	
Job No			Fig	jure No	
29528	9		Fi	gure 25	
Coordinat	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status r aft	
Scale					
0	25	8	50	75 ו	m
A	26/09/2024	Tŀ	1	тн	JA
Issue	Date	By	/	Chkd	Appd
Client			Co	nsultant	
N Gov			A Sk 69 VII	Park. Dre Melbourne Custree. Colline Street, Docklands, 3008, Australia	JP
Health II	nfrastructure				-
	uctrolia DE : L'	d 2024	AU -		
Disclaiment ensure the and accur contained reliance p of the us prior to us	r: While all r e information rate, no warn on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This m	reasona contair ranty is ee from rinform erify the nap is n	ble coned o ned o s give nation e acc ot a c	are has beer n this map is en that the ir error or omi shall be at th uracy of all ir design docume	a taken to up to date nformation ssion. Any se sole risk nformation ent.
	Data NEW Co	ogla			











Lege	Legend Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes Hazard H1 Generally safe for vehicles, people and buildings.								
	 Hazard H1 Generally safe for vehicles, people and buildings. H2 Unsafe for small vehicles. H3 Unsafe for vehicles, children and the elderly. H4 Unsafe for vehicles and people. H5 Unsafe for vehicles and people. All building types vulnerable to structural damage. H6 Unsafe for vehicles and people. All building types considered vulnerable to failure. 								
Project Tit	le 								
Slayne	y wunipi	urpos	se a	ervice					
Drawing T Existi	itte ing PMI	F Flo	ood	Hazard	Ľ				
Job No 29528	9		Fiç F i	jure No gure 28					
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status r aft					
Scale	0.400.000		5 1.2.1.2-						
0	25	2	50	75 r	n				
L									
A	26/09/2024	Tł	1	тн	JA				
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd				
Client			Co	nsultant					
N Gov Health In	SW FRNMENT	•	Sk 69	Park. One Melboure Quarter. Colline Strok, Docklands, 3008 Australia	J P				
Disclaime	r								
© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	. All f	Rights Reserve					
Disclaime ensure th and accu contained reliance p of the us prior to us Sources: 1	Disclaimer (a) Arup Australia Pty Ltd 2024. All Rights Reserved Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document.								

Appendix C

Proposed Conditions Results without mitigation



 Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes Proposed Works Building Footprint Civil Works Depth (m) 								
Depth	Depth (m) <= 0.05 0.05 - 0.10 0.10 - 0.20 0.20 - 0.30 0.30 - 0.40 0.40 - 0.50 0.50 - 1.00 1.00 - 2.50 > 2.50 Water Level Contour (m AHD)							
Project Tit	le N Multin	urno	50 5	Service				
Drawing T Unmit	itte tigated	Des	igr	n 20%				
AEP Depth Job No Figure No								
Job No 29528	Ð		Fig	gure No i gure 29				
Coordinate GDA20 MGA Z	9 e System 20 one 55		Fig Dra Dra	gure No igure 29 awing Status raft				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55		Fig Fi Dra Dra	gure No igure 29 awing Status raft	n			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25		Fig Dra Dra 50	gure No igure 29 awing Status raft 75 r	n			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024	TH	Fig Dra Dra 50	gure No igure 29 awing Status raft 75 r	n JA			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0 Coordinate A Scale	9 e System 20 00ne 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Тŀ		gure No igure 29 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd	n JA Appd			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client	9 e System 20 00ne 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	ТН		gure No igure 29 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant	n JA Appd			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0 A Issue Client	e System 20 0ne 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Tŀ By		gure No gure 29 awing Status raft 75 r 75 r 6 Chkd onsultant Perk De Melboure Course	n JA Appd			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client	e System 20 0000 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH By		gure No gure 29 awing Status raft 75 r 75 r 76	n JA Appd JP			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 No Scale 0 Client Client Client Health Ir Disclaimer © Arup A	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date	TH By td 2024		gure No igure 29 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant ARUC y dochestere Constants	n JA Appd JP			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 No Scale 0 Client Client Client Client Disclaimer ensure the and accur contained reliance p of the us prior to us	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date Ontrastructure custralia Pty Lu r: While all fue e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This m	TH By td 2024 reasona contain ranty is ree from n inform erify the nap is n	Figure 1 Content of the second	gure No igure 29 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant Chkd onsultant Rights Reserve are has been n this map is o en that the in error or omis is shall be at th uracy of all in design docume	n JA Appd JP d Co taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation erit.			



 Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes Proposed Works Building Footprint Civil Works Depth (m) 								
Depth	CIVIL WORKS Depth (m) $< = 0.05$ $0.05 - 0.10$ $0.10 - 0.20$ $0.20 - 0.30$ $0.30 - 0.40$ $0.40 - 0.50$ $0.50 - 1.00$ $1.00 - 2.50$ > 2.50 Water Level Contour (m AHD)							
Project Tit	le av Multin	urno	so (Service				
Drawing T Unmit	itle tigated	Des	igr	n 5% AE	P			
Depth Job No Figure No								
Job No 29528	ו פ		Fiç F i	gure No i gure 30				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo	9 e System 20 one 55		Fig Fi	gure No igure 30 awing Status raft				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0) e System 20 one 55		Fig Fi Dra Dra	gure No igure 30 awing Status raft				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0) e System 20 pne 55 25		Fig Fi Dra Dra	gure No igure 30 awing Status raft 75 r	n			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Scale	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024	Тŀ	Fig Fi Dra Dra 50	gure No igure 30 awing Status raft 75 r	n JA			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Land Land Land Land Land A	9 e System 20 00ne 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	ТН	Fig Fi Dra Dra 50	gure No igure 30 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd	n JA Appd			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Тŀ Ву	Fig Dra Dra 50	gure No igure 30 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant	n JA Appd			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Tŀ By	Fig Fi Dra 50 H Ccc	gure No igure 30 awing Status raft 75 r 	n JA Appd			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client Client Client Client No No No No No No No No No No No No No	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Tŀ By	Fig Fi Dra 50 H Ccc	gure No igure 30 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant ARUC	n JA Appd JP			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MG MGA 20 MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG	9 e System 20 Done 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date	TH By td 2024	Fig Fi Dra 50 H Ccc	gure No igure 30 awing Status raft 75 r 	n JA Appd JP			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 MGA 20 MG MGA 20 MGA 20 MG	e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date Ustralia Pty Lt r: While all ne e information rate, no war on this is fir con this con this con the context of t	TH By td 2024 reasona contair ranty is ree from n inform erify the nap is n	Fig Fi Dra 50 50 H Ccc All F bble c hed o s given n the action of a co	gure No igure 30 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant ARGMS Reserve care has been n this map is i en that the ir error or omis shall be at th uracy of all ir design docume	n JA Appd JP d taken to up to date oformation ession. Any e sole risk oformation ent.			



 Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes Proposed Works Building Footprint Civil Works Depth (m) 								
Depth	Civil Works Depth (m) < = 0.05 0.05 - 0.10 0.10 - 0.20 0.20 - 0.30 0.30 - 0.40 0.40 - 0.50 0.50 - 1.00 1.00 - 2.50 > 2.50 Water Level Contour (m AHD)							
Project Tit	le Ny Multin	urno		Sonvico				
Drawing T Unmit	itte tigated	Des	igr	1% AE	Р			
Depth								
Job No	- a		Fig	jure No				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo	9 e System 20 one 55		Fig Fi Dra Dra	gure No gure 31 awing Status raft				
Job No 295285 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55		Fig Fi Dra Dra	gure No igure 31 awing Status raft 75 r				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25		Fig Fi Dra Dra	gure No igure 31 awing Status raft 75 r	n			
Job No 295289 GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Scale	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024	Тŀ	Fig Fi Dra Dra 50	gure No igure 31 awing Status raft 75 r	n JA			
Job No 295289 GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Scale 0 A	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Tŀ	Fig Fi Dra 50	gure No igure 31 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd	n JA Appd			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Scale 0 A Issue Client	e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH By	Fig Fi Dr: 50 H Ccc	gure No igure 31 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd insultant ARUC Park Multipure During Chkd	n JA Appd			
Job No 295285 GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client Client Client Health In Disclaimen	9 e System 20 Done 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH	Fig Fi Dra 50 H Ccc	gure No igure 31 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd unsultant ARUC 2005 Brettoure County	n JA Appd JP			
Job No 295289 GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 NGA Scale 0 Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date	TH By s	Fig Fi Dra 50 	gure No gure 31 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd msultant ARUC Port, Der Melbure Correct 2005, Autorst	n JA Appd JP			
Job No 295283 GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client Client Client Client Disclaimer ensure the and accur contained pof the us prior to us	e System 20 Dne 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date Date Constructure Co	Th By td 2024 reasona contain ranty is ree from erify the nap is n	Fig Fi Dra 50 50 4 Ccc Cc Cc Cc Cc Cc Cc Cc Cc Cc Cc Cc Cc	gure No igure 31 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd msultant Chkd msultant ARCL grade Augusta Rights Reserve tare has been n this map is t en that the ir error or omis is shall be at th uracy of all ir design docume	n JA Appd JP d taken to up to date iformation ission. Any e sole risk iformation int.			



 Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes Proposed Works Building Footprint Civil Works Depth (m) 								
Depth	Depth (m) <= 0.05 0.05 - 0.10 0.10 - 0.20 0.20 - 0.30 0.30 - 0.40 0.40 - 0.50 0.50 - 1.00 1.00 - 2.50 > 2.50 Water Level Contour (m AHD)							
Project Tit Blayne	le ey Multip	urpo	se S	Service				
Drawing T Unmi + CC	itte tigated Depth	Des	igr	n 1% AE	Р			
+ CC Depth Job No Figure No								
Job No 29528	9		Fig F i	gure No igure 32				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo	9 e System 20 one 55		Fig Fi	gure No igure 32 awing Status raft				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale	9 20 one 55		Fig Fi Dra D	gure No igure 32 awing Status raft				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25		Fig Fi Dra D	gure No igure 32 awing Status raft 75 r	n			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25		Fig Dra Dra 50	gure No igure 32 awing Status raft 75 r	n			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Coordinate A	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024	Tŀ	Fig Fi Dr Dr 50	gure No igure 32 awing Status raft 75 r	n JA			
Job No 29528 GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue	9 e System 20 00ne 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH	Fig Fi Dr: Dr: 50	gure No igure 32 awing Status raft 75 r	n JA Appd			
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Tŀ By	Fig Fi Dr: 50 H Ccc	gure No igure 32 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant Chkd	n JA Appd			
Job No 295289 Coordinat GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client Client Client Health In Disclaimed	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH By	Fię Fi Dr: 50 H Ccc	gure No igure 32 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant ARU Status	n JA Appd JP			
Job No 295283 GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 NGA	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date	TH By s td 2024		gure No igure 32 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant ARUC 2008. Augusta	n JA Appd JP			
Job No 295283 Coordinat GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Scale 0 Client Client Client Client Disclaimee ensure th and accur contained reliance p of the us prior to us	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date SSS ENNMENT r: While all fe e information rrate, no war r: While all fe e information rate, no war r. While all fe e information rate, no war r. Please ve sing it. This n	Th By td 2024 reasona contain ranty is ree from h inform erify the nap is n	Fig Dr. D 50 H Ccc H Ccc All I bble c ned o s given hatior e acco ot a c	gure No igure 32 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant Chkd onsultant ARUC Park Reserve care has been in this map is i en that the ir error or omis a shall be at th uracy of all ir design docume	n JA Appd JP d taken to up to date formation ssion. Any e sole risk formation int.			



 Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes Proposed Works Building Footprint Civil Works Depth (m) 									
Depth	Depth (m) <= 0.05 0.05 - 0.10 0.10 - 0.20 0.20 - 0.30 0.30 - 0.40 0.40 - 0.50 0.50 - 1.00 1.00 - 2.50 > 2.50 Water Level Contour (m AHD)								
Project Tit	le Av Multin	urno	eo (Service					
Drawing T Unmi Denth	itte tigated	Des	igr	n PMF					
Depth Job No Figure No									
Job No 29528	9		Fig Fi	gure No i gure 33					
Job No 295289 Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	9 e System 20 one 55		Fig Fi	gure No igure 33 awing Status raft					
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale	9 e System 20 one 55		Fig Fi Dra Dra	gure No igure 33 awing Status raft					
Job No 29528 Coordinat GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	9 20 one 55 25		Fig Fi Dra Dra	gure No igure 33 awing Status raft 75 r	n				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	9 20 one 55 25		Fig Dra Dra 50	gure No igure 33 awing Status raft 75 r	n				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA Zo Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024	Tŀ	Fig Dra Dra 50	gure No igure 33 awing Status raft 75 r	n JA				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA Zo Scale 0 Coordinate A Scale 0 A	9 e System 20 0ne 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH	Fig Fi Dra D	gure No igure 33 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd	n JA Appd				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0 Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Tŀ	Fig Fi Dr: Dr: 50 H Cc	gure No igure 33 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd	n JA Appd				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA Zo Scale 0 A Issue Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH	Fig Fi Dr: Dr: 50 H Ccc	gure No igure 33 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant ARUC	n JA Appd				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Health In Disclaime	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH By	Fig Fi Dra Dra 50 H Ccc	gure No igure 33 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant ARUC 2006, Renet Database,	n JA Appd JP				
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Uisclaimee © Arup A	9 e System 20 Done 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date	TH By	Figure 1	gure No igure 33 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant ARQUE	n JA Appd JP				













Lege Propo	end Project A Model Bo Contours 1d_nwk_ 1d_nwk_ bsed Work Building Civil Wor ity (m/s) <= 0.5 0.5 - 1.0 1.0 - 1.5 1.5 - 2.0 > 2.0	culve pipes s Footp ks	rry rts print	:	
Project Tit Blavne	lle ev Multip	urpo	se S	Service	
Drawing T Unmi AEP	itle tigated Velocity	Des	igr	n 20%	
Job No	<u> </u>		Fiç	gure No	
Coordinat	e System		Dra	awing Status	
GDA20 MGA Z	20 one 55		D	raft	
Scale	25		50	75	
	25	à	50	/5 r	n
A	26/09/2024	Tŀ	ł		JA
Issue	Date	By	Y	Chkd	Appd
Client			Co	onsultant	
N Gov			Sk 69	Park. One Melbourne Cusater. 5 Collins Etret, Docklands, 2 3008, Australia	J P
Disclaime	r				
© Arup A	ustralia Pty Li	td 2024	. All I	Rights Reserve	
Disclaime ensure th and accu contained reliance p of the us prior to us	r: While all n e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This m	reasona contair ranty is ree from n inform erify the nap is n	able on ned o s give nation ation e acc ot a o	are has been n this map is en that the ir error or omis shall be at th uracy of all ir design docume	taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation int.



 ▶ Project Area ▶ Model Boundary Contours ▶ 1d_nwk_culverts ■ 1d_nwk_pipes Proposed Works ■ Building Footprint ■ Civil Works Velocity (m/s) <= 0.5 0.5 - 1.0 1.0 - 1.5 1.5 - 2.0 > 2.0 											
Project Tit	le Av Multin	urno	se (Service							
Drawing T Unmi Veloc	itle tigated ity	Des	igr	n 5% AE	P						
Job No 29528	9		Fig Fi	gure No i aure 40							
Sob No Figure No 295289 Figure 40 Coordinate System Drawing Status											
Coordinat	20 one 55		D	MGA Zone 55							
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Zo Scale	20 one 55		D	raft							
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	20 one 55 25		D 50	75 r	n						
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z Scale 0	20 one 55 25	ть	50	75 r	n						
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z Scale 0 A	20 one 55 25 26/09/2024	Tł	50 	75 r	n JA						
Coordinat GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A A	20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH	50 	75 r	n JA Appd						
Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client	20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Tŀ By	Di 50 H Ccc	75 r Chkd onsultant ARUC Post. De Metoure Russee 2000, Auersta	n JA Appd						
Coordinate GDA20 MGA20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Veatth In Disclaime	20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH	Di 50 H Ccc	75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m	n JA Appd JP						
Coordinate GDA20 MGA20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Health In Disclaimed © Arup A	20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH B <u>y</u> a td 2024	Di 50 H Ccc	75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m 75 m	n JA Appd JP						
Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Client Disclaimer ensure th and accu contained reliance p of the us prior to us	20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date	td 2024 reasona contai ranty is ree from en inform erify the nap is n	Di 50 H Ccc All F bble c ned o s give s dive s di dive s dive s dive s dive s dive s dive s dive s d	75 m 75 m	n JA Appd JP d taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation int.						

Lege Propo	end Project A Model Bo Contours 1d_nwk_ 1d_nwk_ sed Work Building Civil Wor ity (m/s) <= 0.5 0.5 - 1.0 1.0 - 1.5 1.5 - 2.0 > 2.0	rea ounda culve pipes cs Footp ks	rts ; print					
Project Tit Blavne	le ev Multip	urpo	se S	Service				
Drawing T Unmi Veloc	itie tigated ity	Des	igr	1% AE	P			
Job No 29528	9		Fig	jure No i gure 41				
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status r aft				
Scale	25		50	75 -	n			
	23		50	/31				
Α	26/09/2024	Tł	ł		JA			
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd			
Client	Client Client Client Client Client Client Consultant Consultant Consultant Client Consultant							
Disclaime	r							
© Arup A	ustralia Pty LI	td 2024	. All f	Rights Reserve	d N			
Disclaime ensure th and accu contained reliance p of the us prior to us	r: While all r e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This m	reasona contail ranty is ree fror n inform erify the nap is n	ble c ned o s give n the nation e acc ot a c	are has been n this map is o en that the ir error or omis shall be at th uracy of all ir design docume	taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation ent.			

Lege Propo	 Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes Proposed Works Building Footprint Civil Works Velocity (m/s) <= 0.5 0.5 - 1.0 1.0 - 1.5 1.5 - 2.0 > 2.0 Project Title								
Project Tit	lle av Multip	urpo	se S	Service					
Drawing T Unmi + CC	itle tigated Velocity	Des y	igr	1% AE	P				
Job No 29528	9		Fig Fi	jure No aure 42					
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status					
Scale					~				
0	25	2	50	75 r	n				
517 (286)									
A	26/09/2024	Tł	4		JA				
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd				
Client			Co	nsultant					
N	SW		Sk 69	Park. One Melbourne Guarter. Collins Street, Docklands, 2008, Australia	P				
Dicelsim	n rastructure	2							
© Arun A	ustralia Ptv II	td 2024		Rights Reserve					
Disclaime ensure th and accu contained reliance p of the us prior to us	r: While all i e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This m	reasona contain ranty is ree from h inform erify the nap is n	able on ned o s give n the nation e acc ot a c	are has been n this map is is en that the ir error or omis shall be at th uracy of all ir design docume	taken to up to date oformation ssion. Any e sole risk oformation ent.				

 Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes Proposed Works Building Footprint Civil Works Velocity (m/s) <= 0.5 0.5 - 1.0 1.0 - 1.5 1.5 - 2.0 > 2.0 Project Title Blayney Multipurpose Service								
Project Tit Blayne	^{lle} ey Multip	urpo	se S	Service				
Drawing T Unmi Veloc	itle tigated ity	Des	igr	PMF				
Job No 29528	9		Fig Fi	jure No aure 43				
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status				
Scale	25		50	75 /	n			
	23	8	55					
A	26/09/2024	Tŀ	4		JA			
A	26/09/2024 Date	TH	+	 Chkd	JA Appd			
A Issue	26/09/2024 Date	TH By	H / Co	 Chkd	JA Appd			
A Issue Client	26/09/2024 Date	Tŀ By	H Co	 Chkd insultant ARU 2006: Store Dostante. 2006: Store Dostante.	JA Appd			
A Issue Client Vealth In Disclaime	26/09/2024 Date	TH By	H Co	 Chkd insultant ARUC Perk De Mehome Quarte Stockes Brees, Dockandor, 3006. Australia	JA Appd JP			
A Issue Client Kealth In Disclaimed © Arup A	26/09/2024 Date	TH By td 2024	H Ccc	 Chkd insultant ARU Port. Die Metourie Guere. 2006. Autration 2006. Autration 2006. Autration 2006. Autration	JA Appd JP			
A Issue Client Client Normal Client Normal Client Normal Norm	26/09/2024 Date Date EINMENT Infrastructure r ustralia Pty Li r: While all e e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This n	TH By td 2024 reasona contain ranty is ree from n inform erify the nap is n	Co Co A All F bble co s give n the nation e acc ot a c	Chkd insultant ARU Pack Die Meloure Guerer Codes freet, Goeland Solet, Auerste and Auerste	JA Appd JP d taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation ent.			

Lege	 Legend Project Area Model Boundary Contours → 1d_nwk_culverts → 1d_nwk_pipes Proposed Works Building Footprint Civil Works Hazard H1 Generally safe for vehicles, people and buildings. H2 Unsafe for small vehicles. H3 Unsafe for vehicles, children and the elderly. H4 Unsafe for vehicles and people. H5 Unsafe for vehicles 						
Project Tit	 H5 Unsafe for vehicles and people. All building types vulnerable to structural damage. H6 Unsafe for vehicles and people. All building types considered vulnerable to failure. 						
Blayne	y Multip	urpo	se S	Service			
Drawing T Unmit AEP F	itle tigated Flood H	Des laza	igr rd	20%			
Job No	9		Fig Fi	jure No			
Coordinate GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status			
Scale 0	25		50	75 1	n		
А	26/09/2024	Tł	ł	(##)	JA		
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd		
Client	SW SRNMENT nfrastructure			ARU ARU VPAK. Dhe Melbourne Guarter i Colice Bines, Docklands, 31088, Australia	J P		
Disclaime							
© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	. All F	Rights Reserve	d N		
Disclaimen ensure the and accur contained reliance p of the us prior to us	© Arup Australia Pty Ltd 2024. All Rights Reserved Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document.						
sources: I	Jata.NSW, G	oogle					

Lege	nd						
	Project A	rea					
	Model Bo	bunda	iry				
	Contours	5					
\rightarrow	1d_nwk_	culve	rts				
	1d_nwk_	pipes	5				
Propo	sed Worl	ks					
	Building	Footp	print				
	Civil Wor	ks					
Haza	rd						
	H1 Gen	erally	/ saf	e for vehi	cles,		
	H2 Uns	and i afe fo	or sr	ungs. nall vehicl	es		
	H3 Unsafe for vehicles,						
	children and the elderly.						
	H4 Uns	afe fo	or ve	ehicles			
	H5 Uns	opie. afe fo	or ve	ehicles			
	and pe	ople.	All	building			
	types v	ulner	able	e to			
	structu	ral da	ma	ge.			
	and pe	onle.		huilding			
	types c	onsid	erec	d vulnerab	le		
	to failu	re.					
	••••						
Project Tit	le Multin		~ ~ 4	Somulaa			
ыаупе	y wuup	urpo	sea	Service			
Drawing Title Unmitigated Design 5% AEP							
Flood	tigated Hazar	Des d	igr	n 5% AE	Р		
Flood	tigated Hazar	Des d	igr _{Fiç}	5% AE	P		
Flood Job No 29528	tigated Hazaro	Des d	Fig Fig	gure No igure 45	P		
Flood Job No 295289	tigated Hazaro 9 e System	Des d	Fig Fig Fig Dra	gure No igure 45 awing Status	P		
Flood Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20	tigated Hazaro 9 e System 20	Des d	Fig Fig Dra Dra	gure No igure 45 awing Status raft	P		
Flood Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo	tigated Hazard 9 e System 20 pne 55	Des d	Fig Fig Dra Dra	gure No igure 45 awing Status raft	P		
Flood Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale	tigated Hazard 9 e System 20 one 55	Des d	Fig Fig Dra Dra	gure No igure 45 awing Status raft	P		
Flood Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	tigated Hazard 9 e System 20 one 55 25	Des d	Fig Fi Dra Dra 50	gure No igure 45 awing Status raft	P		
Flood Job No 295285 GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	tigated Hazard 9 • System 20 one 55 25	Des d	Fig Fi Dr Dr 50	gure No igure 45 awing Status raft	P		
Flood Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0 L	tigated Hazard 9 e System 20 one 55 25 25 26/09/2024	Des d	Figr Fig Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra	gure No igure 45 awing Status raft 75 r	P 		
Flood Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0 Scale 0 A	tigated Hazard P e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Des d TH By	Figr Fig Dra 50	yure No igure 45 awing Status raft 75 r	P JA Appd		
Flood Job No 295285 GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client	tigated Hazard P e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Des d TH By	Figr Fig Dr: Dr: Dr: Dr: Dr: Dr: Dr: Dr: Dr: Dr:	a 5% AE	n JA Appd		
Flood Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0 Scale 0 A Issue Client	tigated Hazard 9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Des d	Figr Fi Dra Dra 50 H	a 5% AE	n JA Appd		
Flood Job No 295285 GDA20 MGA ZO Scale 0 Client	tigated Hazard P e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Des d	Figr Fig Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr	a 5% AE gure No igure 45 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant	n JA Appd		
Flood Job No 295289 GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0 A Issue Client	tigated Hazard 9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Des d Th B	Fight	a 5% AE	n JA Appd		
Flood Job No 295285 GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client Client Client Health Ir Disclaimed	tigated Hazard P e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Des d TH By	Figr Fig Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr	s 5% AE gure No igure 45 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant ARUC	n JA Appd		
Flood Job No 295285 GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client Client Client Health Ir Disclaimed	tigated Hazard P e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Des d TH By	Fig Fig Dr 50 H Cc Cc	a 5% AE gure No igure 45 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant ARUC Pack Des Melbure Coster Coster Aussis	n JA Appd JP		
Flood Job No 295283 GDA20 MGA ZO Scale 0 Client Client Client Client Disclaimer ensure thr and accur contained reliance p of the us prior to us	tigated Hazard P e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date Virastructure custralia Pty L r: While all e information custralia Pty L r: While all e information rate, no war on this is fi laced on succ er. Please ve sing it. This n	Des d	Fig Fi Dra Dr 50 H Ccc H Ccc All I Solle c Solution Solution Solution Solution	a 5% AE	n JA Appd JP d taken to up to date information ssion. Any e sole risk information ent.		

Lege							
	na						
Project Area							
	Model Bour	nda	ry				
	Contours						
-	1d_nwk_cu	lve	rts				
Dropo	1d_nwk_pi	pes	i				
	Seu Works	otr	rint				
	Civil Works	out		•			
Turner		•					
Impa	Ct (m) Was Wet	No	<u>ым</u> Г)rv			
	< - 0.1	, INC	JVV L	Jiy			
	-0.5 to -0	.02					
	-0.02 to -0.01						
-0.01 to 0.01							
	0.01 to 0.02						
	0.02 to 0.	.03					
	0.04 to 0.	.05					
	0.05 to 0.	075	5				
	0.075 to (0.1					
	0.1 to 0.2	5					
	> 0.5	.5					
	Was Dry,	No	w V	Vet			
Project Tit	le						
Blayne	y Multipur	rpo	se S	Service			
Drawing Title Unmitigated Design PMF							
Afflux	ligated D)es	igr	n PMF			
Afflux Job No)es	igr Fig	D PMF			
Job No 29528)es	igr _{Fiç} Fi	gure No			
Job No 295289 Coordinate	Cigated D)es	Fig Fig Dra	gure No igure 53 awing Status			
Afflux Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo	a System 20 25 25 26 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20)es	Fig Fig Dra Dra	gure No igure 53 awing Status raft			
Afflux Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale	tigated D () e System 20 Dne 55)es	Fig Fig Dra Dra	gure No igure 53 awing Status raft			
Afflux Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	e System 20 25 50)es	Fig Fig Dra Dra 7	gure No igure 53 awing Status raft			
Afflux Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	25 50)es	Fig Fi Dra Dra 7	gure No igure 53 awing Status raft			
Afflux Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	25 50 26/09/2024)es	igr Fig Fi Dra Dra Dra H	gure No igure 53 awing Status raft 5 m	JA		
Afflux Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Scale 0 A	25 50 26/09/2024 Date	TH By	Figr Fig Dr Dr Dr H	gure No igure 53 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd	JA Appd		
Afflux Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Scale 0 A Issue Client	20 25 50 26/09/2024 Date	TH By	Figr Fi Dra Dra H Ccc	a PMF gure No igure 53 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd	JA Appd		
Afflux Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client	25 50 26/09/2024 Date	TF By	Figr Fig Dr Dr Dr T	PMF gure No igure 53 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant	JA Appd		
Afflux Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA ZO Scale 0 Scale 0 A Issue Client	25 50 26/09/2024 Date	TH By	Figr Fig Dr Dr Dr T Ccc	PMF gure No igure 53 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant ARUC	JA Appd		
Afflux Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Scale 0 Client	25 50 26/09/2024 Date	TH	Figr Fig Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr	PMF gure No igure 53 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant ARUC	JA Appd		
Afflux Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client	25 50 26/09/2024 Date	TF By	Fight	PMF gure No igure 53 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant ARUC	JA Appd JP		
Afflux Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client Client Client Client Health Ir Disclaimer © Arup A	25 50 26/09/2024 Date	0es	Fig Fi Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Cc	a PMF gure No igure 53 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant Chkd	JA Appd JP		
Afflux Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20	25 50 26/09/2024 25 50 26/09/2024 Date 26/09/2024 Date 26/09/2024 Called Called Calle	Des TH By 2024 asona from form y theo p is n	Fig Fig Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra	A PMF gure No igure 53 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant Chkd wasultant Rights Reserve care has been n this map is o en that the ir error or omis shall be at th uracy of all ir design docume	JA Appd JP d Co taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation ent.		

Appendix D

Proposed Conditions Results with mitigation

Lege	Legend Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes Proposed Works Building Footprint Civil Works Depth (m)							
Depth (m) <= 0.05 0.05 - 0.10 0.10 - 0.20 0.20 - 0.30 0.30 - 0.40 0.40 - 0.50 0.50 - 1.00 1.00 - 2.50 > 2.50 Water Level Contour (m AHD)								
Project Tit Blayne	le ey Multip	urpo	se S	Service				
Drawing T	îtle	•						
Desig	n 20% .	AEP	De	epth				
Job No 29528	9		Fig Fi	jure No gure 54				
Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status r aft				
Scale 0	25		50	75 r	n			
	_							
А	26/09/2024	Tŀ	ł		JA			
Issue	Date	By	/	Chkd	Appd			
Client	SW ERNMENT			Insultant	JP			
Disclaime	é .	200-0-0-	320					
© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	. All I	Rights Reserve	d N			
Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document.								
contained reliance p of the us prior to us	e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This n	ranty is ree from h inform erify the nap is n	s given n the nation e acc ot a c	en that the in error or omis shall be at th uracy of all in design docume	of ormation formation e sole risk formation ent.			

Legend Project Area Model Boundary — Contours → 1d_nwk_culverts — 1d_nwk_pipes Proposed Works — Building Footprint — Civil Works — Civil Works							
Depth (m) < = 0.05 0.05 - 0.10 0.10 - 0.20 0.20 - 0.30 0.30 - 0.40 0.40 - 0.50 0.50 - 1.00 1.00 - 2.50 > 2.50 Water Level Contour (m AHD)							
Project Tit	le						
віаупе	ey Multip	urpo	sea	Service			
Drawing T	^{ītle} In 5% A	EP I	Dep	oth			
Job No Figure No							
29528	9		F	igure 55			
295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo	9 e System 20 one 55		Fi Dra D	igure 55 awing Status raft			
295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale	9 e System 20 one 55 25		Fi Dra Di	igure 55 awing Status raft			
295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25		Fi Dra D	igure 55 awing Status raft 75 r	n		
295285 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Ze 0 Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024	Т	Fi Dra 50	igure 55 awing Status raft 75 r	n .IA		
295285 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024	ТН	Fi Dra 50	igure 55 awing Status raft 75 r	n JA		
295285 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue	9 e System 20 00ne 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	ТН		igure 55 awing Status raft 75 r	n JA Appd		
295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH By	Fi Dr/ 50 H (Ccc	igure 55 awing Status raft 75 r 75 r 76	n JA Appd		
295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH By	Fi Dr. 50 H Ccc	igure 55 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant ARUC y Back, Berger Metboure Dusters 3000 Auerus	n JA Appd JP		
295285 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Uisclaimer © Arup A	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date	TH By a td 2024		igure 55 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant Chkd yeak Austral States Reserve	n JA Appd JP		
295285 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 A Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Usclaimer ensure the and accur contained reliance p of the us prior to us	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date SSS ERIMENT frastructure r ustralia Pty L r: While all f e information rate, no war on this is fi laced on suck er. Please ve sing it. This n	TH By td 2024 reasona in contain rranty is ree from h inform erify tho nap is n	Fi Dr. D 50 	igure 55 awing Status raft 75 m	n JA Appd JP d taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation int.		

Lege	Legend Project Area Model Boundary Contours Id_nwk_culverts Id_nwk_pipes Proposed Works Building Footprint Civil Works Depth (m)							
Depth	Depth (m) <= 0.05 0.05 - 0.10 0.10 - 0.20 0.20 - 0.30 0.30 - 0.40 0.40 - 0.50 0.50 - 1.00 1.00 - 2.50 > 2.50 Water Level Contour (m AHD)							
Project Tit	le Av Multin	urno	50 5	Service				
Diayin	.y manp	urpo	50 0					
Desig	յո 1% A	EP	Dep	oth				
Job No 29528	9		Fig Fi	jure No gure 56				
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status r aft				
Scale 0	25	3	50	75 r	n			
	£.5	2						
۸	26/09/2024	т	4		14			
			•					
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd			
Client	SW FRNMENT hfrastructure	•		ARU V Park, One Melbourne Guarter, Colline Birret, Docklands, 3008, Australia	J P			
Disclaime	r							
© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	. All F	Rights Reserve	d N			
© Arup Australia Pty Ltd 2024. All Rights Reserved Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document.								
reliance p of the us prior to us	on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This m	ree from n inform erify the nap is n	n the nation e acc ot a c	error or omis shall be at th uracy of all ir design docume	ssion. Any e sole risk nformation ent.			

Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes Proposed Works Building Footprint Civil Works										
Depth	Depth (m) <= 0.05 0.05 - 0.10 0.10 - 0.20 0.20 - 0.30 0.30 - 0.40 0.40 - 0.50 0.50 - 1.00 1.00 - 2.50 > 2.50 Water Level Contour (m AHD)									
Project Tit	le Av Multin	urno	e 0 (Service						
Drawing T	itle	urpo								
Desig	n 1% A	EP -	+ C	C Depth	i					
Job No 295289	Ð		Fig Fi	jure No gure 57	Job No Figure No					
295269 Figure 57 Coordinate System Drawing Status GDA2020 Draft										
Coordinate GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status r aft						
Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status r aft 75 r	n					
Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	e System 20 one 55 25		Dra D 1 50	awing Status r aft 75 r	n					
Coordinate GDA20 MGA ZO Scale 0	e System 20 0ne 55 25 26/09/2024	Tŀ	Dra Dr 50	awing Status r aft 75 r	n JA					
Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A	e System 20 000e 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	ТН	Dra Di 50 H	awing Status raft 75 r	n JA Appd					
Coordinate GDA20 MGA20 Scale 0 A A Issue Client	e System 20 000e 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	ТН	Dra Di 50 H Co	awing Status raft 75 r Chkd insultant	n JA Appd					
Coordinate GDA20 MGA20 Scale 0 A Issue Client	e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH By	Dra Di 50 H Co	awing Status raft 75 r 75 r 75 r 76 r 76 r 76 r 77 r 77 r 78 r 78 r 78 r 78 r 78 r 78	n JA Appd					
Coordinate GDA20 MGA20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Nov Health Ir	e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Tŀ By	Dra Di 50 H Ccc	awing Status raft 75 r Chkd unsultant Park Che Velbure Duster ARCUC	n JA Appd JP					
Client Client Disclaimer © Arup A	e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date	TH By td 2024	Dra Di 50 H Ccc	awing Status raft 75 r Chkd insultant Chkd insultant Rights Reserve	n JA Appd JP					
Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Client Disclaimer ensure the and accur contained reliance p of the us prior to us	e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date Mirastructure custralia Pty Li custralia Pty Li c	TH By td 2024 reasona contain ranty is ree from n inform erify the nap is n	Dra 50 50 H Co Co Co Co Co A All F bble co hed o s given ation o t a co	Awing Status raft 75 m Chkd Insultant Chkd Insultant Rights Reserve are has been in this map is usen that the in error or omis is shall be at th uracy of all in design docume	n JA Appd JP d taken to up to date iformation ession. Any e sole risk iformation int.					

Lege							
 Project Area Model Boundary Contours 1d_nwk_culverts 1d_nwk_pipes Proposed Works Building Footprint Civil Works Depth (m) 							
Depth (m) <= 0.05 0.05 - 0.10 0.10 - 0.20 0.20 - 0.30 0.30 - 0.40 0.40 - 0.50 0.50 - 1.00 1.00 - 2.50 > 2.50 Water Level Contour (m AHD)							
Project Tit	le						
Blayne	y Multip	urpo	se S	Service			
Drawing T	ïtle						
Desig	n PMF	Dep	th				
Job No 29528	9		Fig Fi	jure No gure 58			
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status r aft			
Scale	25		50	75 -			
	25	8	50	/5 r	n		
				11.00			
A	26/09/2024	Tŀ	1		JA		
A Issue	26/09/2024 Date	TH By	+ /	 Chkd	JA Appd		
A Issue Client	26/09/2024 Date	TH By	H / Co	 Chkd	JA Appd		
A Issue Client	26/09/2024 Date	TH	H Co	 Chkd insultant ARUC perk. One Melhome Counter. 10 dets Alteret Booklands.	JA Appd		
A Issue Client Health In Disclaime	26/09/2024 Date	Tŀ By	f Co	 Chkd insultant ARUC Perk. Des Melburne Guarte Stockes Brees, Docklands, 3006. Australia	JA Appd		
A Issue Client Health In Disclaimen © Arup A	26/09/2024 Date	TH By	H Co Co	 Chkd insultant ARU Port, Die Melborne Guere. 3906. Ausrate 3906. Ausrate	JA Appd JP		
A Issue Client Client Nov Health In Disclaimed reliance p of the us prior to us Sources: I	26/09/2024 Date Date SENT ofrastructure custralia Pty Li c: While all n e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This m Data.NSW, Go	TH By td 2024 reasona contair ranty is ree from n inform erify the nap is n oogle	Co Co A B B B B Co Co Co Co Co Co Co Co Co Co Co Co Co	 Chkd insultant ARUC Port. Des Meloure Curre. Port. Des Meloure Curre	JA Appd JP d taken to up to date formation ssion. Any e sole risk formation int.		


Level	end Project A Model Bo Contours 1d_nwk_ 1d_nwk_ bsed Work Building Civil Wor (m_AHD 890 860	culve pipes s Footp ks	rts print		
Project Tit Blayne	^{lle} ey Multip	urpo	se S	Service	
Drawing T	ītle				
Desig	jn 20% .	AEP	W	ater Lev	el
Job No 29528	9		Fig Fi	^{gure No} i gure 59	
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status r aft	
Scale 0	25		50	75 r	n
		8			
Δ	26/09/2024	ТН	4		JA
					23403
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd
Client	SW ERNMENT			ARU Park. One Melbume Custre. 9 Coline Broet, Docklands, 2 3008, Australia	J P
Disclaime	r				
© Arup A	ustralia Pty L	td 2024	. All I	Rights Reserve	d N
Disclaime ensure th and accu contained reliance p of the us prior to us	r: While all e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This n	reasona contair ranty is ree from h inform erify the nap is n	ble c ned o s give n the nation e acc ot a c	are has been n this map is (en that the in error or omis shall be at th uracy of all in design docume	taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation ent.



Lege	end Project A Model Bo Contours 1d_nwk_ 1d_nwk_ sed Work Building Civil Wor (m_AHD 890 860	rea ounda culve pipes s Footp ks)	rts print		
Project Tit Blayne	^{le} ey Multip	urpo	se S	Service	
Drawing T	^{ītle} In 5% A	EP	Wa	ter Leve	1
Job No 29528	9		Fig Fi	gure No i gure 60	
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Drawing Status Draft		
Scale	25		50	75 r	n
	23	ŝ	50	/31	
A	26/09/2024	Tŀ	1	()	JA
Issue	Date	By	/	Chkd	Appd
Client			Co	onsultant	
N Gov Health Ir			Sk 69	ARU Park. One Melbourne Quarter o colles Strock, Docklands, 3008, Australia	P
Disclaime	r				
© Arup A	ustralia Pty LI	td 2024	. All I	Rights Reserve	d N
Disclaime ensure the and accur contained reliance p of the us prior to us	r: While all n e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This m	reasona contair ranty is ee from ninform erify the nap is n	ble of ned o s give n the nation e acc ot a o	care has been n this map is o en that the ir error or omis shall be at th uracy of all ir design docume	taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation int.
Sources: I	Data.NSW, Go	oogle			



Lege	end Project A Model Bc Contours 1d_nwk_ 1d_nwk_ sed Work Building Civil Wor (m_AHD 890 860	culve pipes s Footp ks	rts ; print		
Project Tit Blayne	^{le} ey Multip	urpo	se S	Service	
Drawing T Desig	^{ītle} Jn 1% A	EP	Wa	ter Leve	1
Job No 29528	9		Fiç F i	gure No i gure 61	
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status r aft	
Scale	25		50	75 -	
	25	ŝ.	50	/51	u.(
٨	26/00/2024	T			10
A	20/09/2024		1	>	JA
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd
Client	SW ERNMENT		Co	ARU V Park, One Melbourne Quarter 9 Colline Birnet, Docklands, 2 3008, Australia	P
Disclaime © Arup A Disclaime ensure th and accu contained reliance p of the us prior to us	r: While all e information rate, no war on this is fi laced on suct er. Please ve sing it. This n	td 2024 reasona contair ranty is ree fror n inform erify the nap is n	ble conception of the concepti	Rights Reserve are has been n this map is o en that the ir error or omis shall be at the uracy of all ir design docume	taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation int.
Sources:	Data.NSW, G	oogle			





Project Area Model Boundary → 1d_nwk_culverts ----- 1d_nwk_pipes Proposed Works Building Footprint Civil Works Blayney Multipurpose Service Design PMF Water Level Figure No Figure 63 Drawing Status Draft 50 75 m ΤH JA ---By Chkd Appd Consultant ARUP N © Arup Australia Pty Ltd 2024. All Rights Reserved Disclaimer: While all reasonable care has been taken to ensure the information contained on this map is up to date and accurate, no warranty is given that the information contained on this is free from the error or omission. Any reliance placed on such information shall be at the sole risk of the user. Please verify the accuracy of all information prior to using it. This map is not a design document.



Propo	Project A Model Bo Contours 1d_nwk_ 1d_nwk_ sed Work Building Civil Wor ity (m/s) <= 0.5 0.5 - 1.0 1.0 - 1.5 1.5 - 2.0 > 2.0	rea ounda culve pipes s Footp ks	erts s		
Project Tit Blavne	le ev Multip	urpo	se S	Service	
Drawing T	ītle				
Desig	jn 20% /	AEP	Ve	locity	
Job No 29528	9		Fiç F i	gure No i gure 64	
295289 Figure 64 Coordinate System Drawing Status GDA2020 Draft					
MGA Z	one 55				
MGA Z	one 55		50	75 -	n
MGA Zo Scale 0	one 55 25	2	50	75 r	n
MGA Zo Scale 0	25 26/09/2024	Tŀ	50 	75 r	n JA
MGA Zo Scale 0 A Issue	25 26/09/2024 Date	Tŀ	50 	75 r Chkd	n JA Appd
MGA Zo Scale 0 A Issue Client	25 26/09/2024 Date	TH By	50 	75 r Chkd onsultant	n JA Appd
MGA Zo Scale 0 A Issue Client	25 26/09/2024 Date	TH By	50 H Ccc	75 m	n JA Appd
MGA Zo Scale 0 A Issue Client Health In Disclaimed	25 26/09/2024 Date	Тŀ	50 H Ccc	75 r	n JA Appd JP
MGA Zo Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Health In Disclaimer © Arup A	25 26/09/2024 Date Date	TH By	50 H Ccc	75 r	n JA Appd JP
MGA Zo Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Uisclaimee (© Arup A Disclaimee ensure th and accur contained reliance p of the us prior to us	25 26/09/2024 Date Date SERVMENT r ustralia Pty Lt r: While all ne e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This m	TH By td 2024 reasona contain ranty is ee from inform rify the hap is n	50 H Ccc A. All F bble coned on s given n the mation e accoot a co	75 r Chkd onsultant ARUC Sock Dro Metourne Guerrer Sock Dro Metourner Sock Dro Metourne Guerrer Sock Dro Metourner Sock Dro	n JA Appd JP d taken to up to date formation ssion. Any e sole risk formation state



Lege Propo	end Project A Model Bo Contours 1d_nwk_ 1d_nwk_ bsed Work Building Civil Wor ity (m/s) <= 0.5 0.5 - 1.0 1.0 - 1.5 1.5 - 2.0 > 2.0	rea ounda culve pipes cs Footp ks	erts S	:	
Project Ti Blavne	lle ev Multip	urpo	se \$	Service	
Drawing T Desig Job No 29528	itte Jn 5% A 9	EP	Vel Fig Fi	ocity ^{gure No} igure 65	
GDA20	e System 20 one 55		Drawing Status Draft		
Scale 0	25		50	75 r	n
2 2 1					
А	26/09/2024	Tł	H		JA
Issue	Date	B	y	Chkd	Appd
Client	SW FRNMENT		Co	ARU State Breet, Docklands, 2008, Australia 2009, Australia	J P
Disclaime	r		L		
© Arup A Disclaime ensure th and accu contained reliance p of the us prior to u	ustralia Pty Lt r: While all n e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This m	td 2024 reasona contai ranty i ree fror n inforn erify the nap is n	H. All I ned o s give n the nation e acc ot a c	Rights Reserve are has been n this map is o en that the ir error or omis shall be at th uracy of all ir design docume	taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation int.



Lege Propo	end Project A Model Bo Contours 1d_nwk_ 1d_nwk_ sed Work Building Civil Wor ity (m/s) <= 0.5 0.5 - 1.0 1.0 - 1.5 1.5 - 2.0 > 2.0	culve pipes s Footp ks	iry rts print		
Project Tit Blayne	lle ey Multip	urpo	se S	Service	
Drawing T Desig	i ^{ttle} Jn 1% A	EP			
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Drawing Status		
Scale 0	25		50	75 r	n
А	26/09/2024	Tł	ł		JA
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd
Client	SW FRNMENT			ARUC Park. One Meltoume Custer. Colline Birost, Docklands, 3008, Australia	P
© Arup A Disclaime ensure th and accu contained reliance p of the us prior to us	r ustralia Pty L1 e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This m Data NSW G	td 2024 reasona contail ranty is ree from rinform erify the nap is n	All I able coned o s give nation e acco ot a co	Rights Reserve are has been n this map is u en that the in error or omis shall be at the uracy of all in design docume	taken to up to date formation ssion. Any e sole risk formation nt.



Lege Propo	end Project A Model Bo Contours 1d_nwk_ 1d_nwk_ sed Work Building Civil Wor ity (m/s) <= 0.5 0.5 - 1.0 1.0 - 1.5 1.5 - 2.0 > 2.0	rea ounda culve pipes cs Footp ks	rry rts print	:	
Project Tit Blayne	le ev Multip	urpo	se S	Service	
Drawing T Desig	itte jn 1% A itv	EP	+ C	с	
Job No			Fig	gure No	
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Drawing Status		
Scale	25		50	75 r	n
	£J	2			•••
Α	26/09/2024	Tł	ł		JA
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd
Client	SW FRNMENT			Park: One Melbourne Quarter. Collies Biroet, Docklands, 2008, Australia	J P
Disclaime	r				
© Arup A	ustralia Pty Ll	td 2024	. All I	Rights Reserve	d N
Disclaimen ensure the and accur contained reliance p of the us prior to us	r: While all r e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This m	reasona contail ranty is ree from rinform erify the nap is n	able of ned o s give nation ation e acc ot a o	are has been n this map is o en that the ir error or omis shall be at th uracy of all ir design docume	taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation ent.



Lege Propo	end Project A Model Bc Contours 1d_nwk_ 1d_nwk_ sed Work Building Civil Wor ity (m/s) <= 0.5 0.5 - 1.0 1.0 - 1.5 1.5 - 2.0 > 2.0	culve pipes s Footp ks	rts s	:	
Project Tit Blayne	le ey Multip	urpo	se S	Service	
Drawing T Desig	itle In PMF	Velo	ocit	у	
Job No 29528	9		Fig Fi	gure No gure 68	
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status r aft	
Scale 0	25	3	50	75 r	n
		2			5.5 V
A	26/09/2024	Tł	1		JA
Issue	Date	B	/	Chkd	Appd
Client	SW FRNMENT			nsultant ARUC Pack. One Metourne Couster collice Street, Docklands, 13008, Australia	P
© Arup A Disclaime ensure th and accur contained reliance p of the us prior to us Sources: 1	r: While all e information rate, no war on this is fi laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This n Data.NSW, G	td 2024 reasona contair ranty is ree fror n inform erify the nap is n oogle	All F ble c ned o s give n the nation e acc ot a c	Rights Reserve are has been n this map is u en that the in error or omis shall be at th uracy of all in design docume	taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation int.



















Lege	nd				
	inu				
	Project A	rea			
	Model Bo	unda	ry		
	Contours				
-	1d_nwk_	culve	rts		
Propo	1d_nwk_	pipes			
	Building	S Footr	rint	-	
	Civil Wor	kc kc	// // //	•3	
Impo		N3			
Impa	Was We	et No	wr [)rv	
	< - 0.1	,		.,	
	-0.5 to	-0.02			
	-0.02 to	-0.0	1		
	-0.01 to	0.01			
	0.01 to	0.02			
	0.02 to	0.04			
	0.04 to	0.05			
	0.05 to	0.075	5		
	0.0/5 to	25			
	0.1 to 0	0.5			
	> 0.5	0.0			
	Was Dr	y, No	w V	Vet	
Project Tit	le				
Blayne	ey Multip	urpo	se :	Service	
Drawing T	ītle				
Desig	n 20% /	AEP	Af	£1	
Design 2070 AEI				TIUX	
Job No			Fiç	gure No	
Job No 29528	9		Fiç Fi	gure No igure 74	
Job No 295289 Coordinat	9 e System		Fig Fi	gure No igure 74 awing Status	
Job No 295289 Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	9 e System 20 one 55		Fig Fi Dra	gure No igure 74 awing Status raft	
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale	9 e System 20 one 55		Fig Fi	gure No igure 74 awing Status raft	
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55	50	Fig Fi Dra Dra 7	gure No igure 74 awing Status raft 5 m	
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	9 20 20 25	50	Fig Fi Dra Dra 7	gure No igure 74 awing Status raft	
Job No 295285 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25 25 26/09/2024	50 TH	Fig Fi Dra Dra 7	gure No igure 74 awing Status raft 5 m	JA
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 Scale 0 Scale 0 A Issue	9 e System 20 000e 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	50 TH By	Fig Fi Dra Dra 1	gure No igure 74 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd	JA Appd
Job No 295285 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	50 TH By	Fig Fi Dra Dra Dra H	gure No igure 74 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd	JA Appd
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 Scale 0 Scale 0 A Issue	9 e System 20 0ne 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	50 TH By	Fig Fi Dra Dra Dra H	gure No igure 74 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant	JA Appd
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	50 TH By	Fig Fi Dr: Dr: Dr: T Dr: T Ccc	gure No igure 74 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant ARUC	JA Appd
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	50 TH By	Fig Fi Dra Dra T	gure No igure 74 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant ARUC	JA Appd
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	50 TH By	Fig Fi Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra	gure No igure 74 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant ARUC	JA Appd JP
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client Client Client Client Disclaimee © Arup A	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date	50 TH By	Fig Fi Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra	gure No igure 74 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant ARQUE	JA Appd JP
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 Scale 0 Scale 0 Client Client Client Disclaimee ensure th and accur contained reliance p of the us prior to us	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date Content C	50 Th By td 2024 reasona contair ranty is rea from erify the hap is n	Fig Fi Dra Dra Dra T Dra T Dra T Dra T Dra T Dra T Dra T Dra T Dra T Dra T Dra T Dra T Dra T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T	gure No igure 74 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant Chkd onsultant ARGMS Reserve care has been n this map is of en that the in error or omis shall be at th uracy of all in design docume	JA Appd JP d Co taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation int.



Lege	nd				
	Project A	rea			
	Model Bo	ounda	ry		
	Contours				
-	1d_nwk_	culve	rts		
Propo	ia_nwk_ sed Work	pipes			
	Buildina	Footr	rint	-	
	Civil Wor	ks		10	
Impa	ict (m)				
	Was We	et, No	w [Dry	
	< - 0.1	-0 02			
	-0.02 to	0.02	1		
	-0.01 to	0.01			
	0.01 to	0.02			
	0.02 to	0.03			
	0.02 to	0.05			
	0.05 to	0.075	5		
	0.075 to	0.1			
	0.1 to 0	0.5			
	> 0.5	0.5			
	Was Dr	y, No	w V	Vet	
Project Tit	le	101232727	-		
Blayne	ey Multip	urpo	se :	Service	
Drawing T	ītle				
Desig	n 5% A	EP /	٩ff	ux	
Job No			Figure No		
29528	9		F	igure 75	
Coordinat	e System		Drawing Status		
GDA20 MGA Z	20 one 55		Draft		
Scale					
0	25	50	7	5 m	
А	26/09/2024	Tŀ	ł		JA
Issue	Date	By	/	Chkd	Appd
Client			Co	onsultant	
4	XU/S		1	ARI	IP
GOV	SW		Sk 69	y Park. One Melbourne Guarter. 9 Collins Street, Docklands, 2008 Australia	
Health II	nfrastructure	•			
© Arun A	r ustralia Ptv H	td 2024	. All I	Rights Reserve	
Disclaime	r: While all	reasona	ble	are has been	taken to
ensure the and accur contained reliance p of the us prior to us	e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This m	reasonation ranty is ree from n inform erify the nap is n	ned o give n the nation e acc ot a o	n this map is used that the in error or omis shall be at the uracy of all in design docume	up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation ent.
Sources: I	Data.NSW, Go	oogle			
					I



Lege	end				
	Project A	rea			
	Model Bo	unda	ry		
	Contours	a di di da			
	1d_nwk_	cuive	rts		
Propo	sed Work	kihea (S			
	Building	Footp	rint	:	
	Civil Wor	ks			
	rect (m) Was We < - 0.1 -0.5 to -0.02 to -0.01 to 0.02 to 0.02 to 0.02 to 0.04 to 0.075 to 0.1 to 0 0.25 to > 0.5 Was Dru-	et, No -0.02 -0.0 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.04 0.05 0.075 0.075 0.1 .25 0.5 y, No	ow [1 5 w V	Dry Vet Service	
Blayne	ey Multip	urpo	se S	Service	
Drawing T	ītle				
Desig	jn 1% A	EP /	Affl	ux	
Job No 29528	9		Figure No Figure 76		
Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	e System 20 one 55		Dra Di	awing Status r aft	
Scale					
0	25	50	7	5 m	
<u>.</u>			_		
A	26/09/2024	Tŀ	ł		JA
Issue	Date	By	/	Chkd	Appd
Client			Co	onsultant	
Ą	XVE		1	ARI	IP
GOV	ERNMENT		Sk 69	y Park. One Melbourne Quarter. 9 Collins Street, Docklands, 2 3008, Australia	-
Health I	nfrastructure				
Disclaime	r ustralia Pty Li	td 2024	. All I	Rights Reserve	
Disclaime ensure th and accu contained reliance p of the us prior to us	r: While all n e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This m	reasona contair ranty is ee from inform erify the nap is n	ble of ned o give n the nation e acc ot a o	are has been n this map is u en that the in error or omis shall be at th uracy of all in design docume	taken to up to date formation ssion. Any e sole risk formation ent.
Sources	Data NSW C	onle			



Lege	1993				
	nd				
	Project A	rea			
	Model Bo	ounda	ry		
	Contours				
-	1d_nwk_	culve	rts		
Propo	1d_nwk_	pipes			
	Building	NS Footr	rint	-	
	Civil Wor	ks '		tô	
Impa	ct (m)				
Inpa	Was We	et. No	w [Drv	
	< - 0.1				
-0.5 to -0.02					
	-0.02 to	-0.0	1		
	-0.01 to	0.02			
	0.02 to	0.03			
	0.02 to	0.04			
	0.04 to	0.05	-s		
	0.05 to	0.075)		
	0.1 to 0).25			
	0.25 to	0.5			
	> 0.5			1.1	
Project Tit	was Dr	y, no	w v	vet	
Blayne	ey Multip	urpo	se S	Service	
Drawing T	Itle	0100-00-000			
Drawing					
Dealu		ED.	L C	C Afflux	
	IN 1% A	EP -	+ C	C Afflux	¢ (
Job No	in 1% A	EP -	Fig	C Afflux	۲
Job No 29528	9 9	EP -	+ C _{Fig} Fi	C Afflux ^{gure No} igure 77	
Job No 29528 Coordinat	9 9 20	EP -	Fiç Fi Dr	C Afflux gure No igure 77 awing Status	
Job No 29528 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo	9 e System 20 one 55	EP -	Fig Fig Dr Dr	C Afflux gure No igure 77 awing Status raft	
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale	9 9 20 0ne 55	EP -	⊢ C Fiç Dr: D	C Afflux gure No igure 77 awing Status raft	د
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55	50 50	Fig Fig Dra Dra 7	C Afflux gure No igure 77 awing Status raft	د
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25	50 50	Fig Fig Dr D	C Afflux gure No igure 77 awing Status raft	۲
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024	50 50 Th	Fit Fit Dr: 7	C Afflux gure No igure 77 awing Status raft 5 m	L
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 A	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	50 TH By	+ C Fig Fi Dr: Dr: 7 7 4	C Afflux gure No igure 77 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd	JA
Job No 295283 Coordinate GDA200 MGA Zo Scale 0 Scale 0 A Issue Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	50 50 By	+ C Fig Fi Dri Dri Dri H	C Afflux gure No igure 77 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd	JA
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	50 TH By	+ C Fig Dr/ D	C Afflux gure No igure 77 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant	JA Appd
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Lissue	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	50 50 By	+ C Fig Dr: Dr: D T C C C C	C Afflux gure No igure 77 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant	JA Appd
Job No 295283 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	50 TH By	+ C Fig Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr Dr	C Afflux gure No igure 77 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant	JA Appd
Job No 295285 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client Client Client Client Usclaimer	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date	50 TH By		C Afflux gure No igure 77 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant YRUU yeek Desented.	JA Appd JP
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG MG	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	50 TH By	+ C Fig Dr: Dr: Dr: Dr: Dr: Dr: Dr: Dr: Dr: Dr:	C Afflux gure No igure 77 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant ARUC 2006 Breet Doctored 2006 Breet Doctored 2006 Breet Doctored 2006 Breet Doctored 2006 Breet Doctored	JA Appd JP
Job No 295283 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 MGA 20 MG MGA 20 MGA 20 MG	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date Constructure rustralia Pty Li r: While all ne e information rate, no war on this is fr laced on such er. Please ve sing it. This n	50 50 TH By td 2024 reasona o contain rranty is ree from h inform erify the nap is n	F C Fig Fi Dra D D T T T T C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	C Afflux gure No igure 77 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant ARGMS Reserve care has been n this map is i en that the ir error or omis shall be at th uracy of all ir design docume	JA JA Appd JP d taken to up to date offormation ssion. Any e sole risk offormation ent.



Legend											
Project Area											
	Model Bou	unda	rv								
_	Contours										
\rightarrow	1d nwk c	ulve	rts								
_	1d nwk p	pipes									
Propo	sed Works	S									
	Building F	ootp	rint	5							
Civil Works											
Impa	ict (m) Was Wei < - 0.1	t, No 0.02 -0.01 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.04 0.05 0.1 25 0.1 25 0.5	ow [1 5 w V	Dry Vet Service							
Diayin	sy wanipa	ii þu	56 (Service							
Drawing T	ītle										
Desig	n PMF A	Afflu	XL		Design PMF Afflux						
Job No 29528	9		Fiç F i	gure No igure 78							
Job No 29528 Coordinat	9 e System		Fig Fi	gure No igure 78 awing Status							
Job No 295289 Coordinat GDA20	9 e System 20		Fiç Fi Dra Dra	gure No igure 78 awing Status raft							
Job No 29528 Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z	9 e System 20 one 55		Fig Fi	gure No igure 78 awing Status raft							
Job No 29528 Coordinat GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55	0	Fig Fi Dra Dr	gure No igure 78 awing Status raft 5 m							
Job No 29528 Coordinat GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25 5	0	Fig Fi Dra Dra 7	gure No igure 78 awing Status raft 5 m							
Job No 29528 Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z Scale 0	9 20 one 55 25 5	0	Fig Fi Dra Dra 7	gure No igure 78 awing Status raft ⁵ m							
Job No 29528 Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25 5 26/09/2024	0 TF	Fig Fi Dra Dra 7	gure No igure 78 awing Status raft 5 m	JA						
Job No 295283 Coordinat GDA20 MGA Zo Scale 0 A A Issue	9 e System 20 one 55 25 5 26/09/2024 Date	0 TH By	Fig Fi Dra Dra 1	gure No igure 78 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd	JA Appd						
Job No 29528 Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z Scale 0 A Issue Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 5 26/09/2024 Date	0 T⊦ By	Fig Fi Dra D 1 7 7 7 1 Cc	gure No igure 78 awing Status raft '5 m Chkd	JA Appd						
Job No 295283 Coordinat GDA200 MGA Zo Scale 0 A Issue Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 5 26/09/2024 Date	₀ T⊦ By	Fig Fi Dra Dra T Cc	gure No igure 78 awing Status raft 75 m Chkd onsultant	JA Appd						
Job No 29528 Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z Scale 0 Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 5 26/09/2024 Date	0 TF By	Fig Fi Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra	gure No igure 78 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant ARUC	JA Appd						
Job No 29528 Coordinat GDA20 MGA 2 Scale 0 A Issue Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 5 26/09/2024 Date	0 TH By	Fig Fi Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra Dra	gure No igure 78 awing Status raft 5 m Chkd onsultant ARUC	JA Appd						
Job No 295283 Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Health In Disclaime	9 e System 20 one 55 25 5 26/09/2024 Date Date	0 TF By	Fig	gure No igure 78 igure 78 awing Status raft '5 m Chkd onsultant ARUC y Pack Desembly Charles Consultant	JA Appd JP						
Job No 295283 Coordinat GDA20 MGA Z Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Uisclaime © Arup A	9 e System 20 one 55 25 5 26/09/2024 Date Control Cont	0 TH By	Fig Fi Dra Dra Dra T Dra T Co Co Co Co Co Co Co Co Co Co Co Co Co	gure No igure 78 awing Status raft 75 m Chkd onsultant ARUC yet, Do Metoure Custor costs front Docktor costs front Docktor costs front Docktor costs front Docktor costs front Docktor costs front Docktor	JA Appd JP						
Job No 29528 Coordinat GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Uisclaime ensure th and accu contained reliance p of the us prior to us	9 e System 20 Done 55 25 5 26/09/2024 Date Calculation	0 TH By d 2024 easona inform inform ify the ap is n	Fig Fi Dra Dra Dra T Dra T Co Co Co Co S S S S S S S S S S S S S S	gure No igure 78 awing Status raft 75 m Chkd onsultant ARIGHTS Reserve care has been in this map is o en that the in error or omis s shall be at th uracy of all in design docume	JA Appd JP d Co taken to up to date formation siston. Any e sole risk formation int.						

Appendix E TUFLOW Sensitivity Testing Results



Propo	Project Ar Model Bou Contours 1d_nwk_c 1d_nwk_p sed Works Building F Civil Work	ea Inda Ulve ipes S ootp s	rts orint	:	
Depth (m) <= 0.05 0.05 - 0.10 0.10 - 0.20 0.20 - 0.30 0.30 - 0.40 0.40 - 0.50 0.50 - 1.00 1.00 - 2.50 > 2.50 Water Level Contour (m AHD)					
Project Tit Blavne	le ev Multipu	rpo	se S	Service	
Drawing T Existi	itle ing 1% A	EP	^p De	epth	
Blockage Sensitivity Job No Figure No 205280 Figure 70					
29528	9		F	igure 79	
29528 Coordinate GDA20 MGA Zo	9 e System 20 one 55		Fi Dra Di	igure 79 awing Status raft	
295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0	9 e System 20 one 55 25		Fi Dra D	igure 79 awing Status raft 75 r	n
295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0	9 e System 20 0ne 55 25 26/09/2024	Tŀ	Fi Dra D	igure 79 awing Status raft 75 r	n JA
295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A	9 e System 20 000e 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH	Fi Dr: 50 H	igure 79 awing Status raft 75 r	n JA Appd
295285 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client	9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	TH	Fi Dr: 50 H Ccc	igure 79 awing Status raft 75 r 75 r 75 r 76 r 76 r 76 r 76 r 77 r 77 r 77 r 77	n JA Appd
295285 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue Client Client Health Ir Disclaimer	9 e System 20 0ne 55 25 26/09/2024 Date	Tŀ		igure 79 awing Status raft 75 r 75 r 75 r 76	n JA Appd JP



Lege	end Project Ar Model Bou Contours 1d_nwk_c 1d_nwk_p sed Work Building F Civil Work	rea unda culve oipes s Footp	rts orint	t)		
Depth (m) <= 0.05 0.05 - 0.10 0.10 - 0.20 0.20 - 0.30 0.30 - 0.40 0.40 - 0.50 0.50 - 1.00 1.00 - 2.50 > 2.50 Water Level Contour (m AHD)						
Project Tit	le					
Blayne	ey Multipu	ırpo	se S	Service		
Drawing Title Design 1% AEP Depth						
Desig	in 1% Al age Ser	EP I nsit	De j ivit	oth Y		
Job No 29528	i ^{nie} 1% Al age Ser	EP I nsit	Dej ivit ^{Fig} Fi	oth Y ^{gure No} igure 80		
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA Ze	in 1% Al age Ser 9 e System 20 one 55	EP I nsit	Dej ivit Fig Dra Dra	oth y gure No igure 80 awing Status raft		
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale	n 1% Al age Ser 9 e System 20 one 55	EP I nsit	Dej ivit Fig Dra Dra	oth y gure No igure 80 awing Status raft		
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA Zo Scale 0	in 1% Al age Ser 9 e System 20 one 55	EP I	Dej ivit Fig Dra D	oth y gure No igure 80 awing Status raft 75 r	n	
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 Scale 0	in 1% Al age Ser 9 e System 20 one 55 25	EP I	Dej ivit Fig Dr: Dr: D	oth y gure No igure 80 awing Status raft 75 r	n	
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA Zo Scale 0	1 ^{the} n 1% Al age Ser 9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024		Dep ivit Fiç Dr Dr 50	oth y gure No igure 80 awing Status raft 75 r	n JA	
Job No 295283 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 Scale 0 A Issue	1% Al age Ser 9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date		Dep ivit Fig Dr. 50	oth y gure No igure 80 awing Status raft 75 r	n JA Appd	
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 A Scale 0 A Issue Client	In 1% Al age Ser 9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date		Dep ivit Fig Dr 50	oth y gure No igure 80 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant	n JA Appd	
A Desig Block Job No 295289 Coordinat GDA20 MGA 20 MGA	In 1% Al age Ser 9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date		Dep ivit Fiç Dr. Dr. Dr. Dr. Dr. Dr. Dr. Dr. Dr. V	oth y gure No igure 80 awing Status raft 75 r 	n JA Appd	
Job No 295283 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client Client	In 1% Al age Ser 9 e System 20 0 ne 55 25 26/09/2024 Date		Dep ivit Fic Dr: 50	oth y gure No igure 80 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant ARUC	n JA Appd JP	
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 MGA 20 Scale 0 Client Client Client Usclaimee © Arup A	In 1% Al age Ser 9 e System 20 0 ne 55 25 26/09/2024 Date Date	EP I nsit		pure No igure 80 awing Status raft 75 r Chkd onsultant ARUC 2008. Autoration 2 consection of the section 2 consection of the section of the section of the section 2 consection of the section of the se	n JA Appd JP	
Job No 295289 Coordinate GDA200 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 MGA 20 Client Client Client Client Disclaimed ensure th and accur contained reliance p of the us prior to us Sources: I	In 1% Al age Ser 9 e System 20 one 55 25 26/09/2024 Date 26/09/2024 Date	EP I nsit	So So So So So So So So So So	aving Status raft 75 r 75 r 75 r 76 r 76 r 77 r 77 r 78 r 78 r 78 r 78 r 78 r 78	n JA Appd JP d taken to up to date iformation ssion. Any e sole risk iformation ent.	



